AGENDA

FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF RED DEER CITY COUNCIL

TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
MONDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2001

COMMENCING AT 4:30 P.M.

(1)  Confirmation of the Minutes of the regular meeting of Monday, December
3, 2001.

Page #

(2)  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

(3)  PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. City Clerk - re: Red Deer Investments Inc..

(@) Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001/
Rezoning former Chrysler Site from I1 Industrial
(Business Service) to C2 Commercial (Regional and
District Shopping Centre)

(Consideration of 2nd & 3rd Readings of the Bylaw)

(b)  Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 / Gaetz Avenue & 227
Street
(Consideration of 2nd & 34 Readings of the Bylaw) A
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4)

REPORTS

1.

City Clerk - re: Downtown Business Association’s 2002
Budget

City Clerk - re: Downtown Business Association Board of
Director Appointment

Social Planning Manager - re: International Year of the
Volunteer - Voluntarism in Red Deer

Information Technology Services Manager - re:
Geographical Information System (GIS) Strategy Report

Parkland Community Planning Services — re: Land Use
Bylaw Amendment 3156/TT-2001 / Addition of Amateur
Radio Towers as a Discretionary use in R1, R1A, RIN and
R2 Districts /| Addition of Drinking Establishments in C4
Commercial (Major Arterial) District / Renumbering of
Section regarding Parking Standards in R2 Residential
(Medium Density) District to Proper Bylaw Section Number
/ Addition of “Bingo Hall” and “Casino” to definition of
“Commercial Recreation Facility”.

(Consideration of 1¢t Reading of the Bylaw)

Inspections & Licensing Manager - re: Amateur Radio
Towers Guidelines — Amendment to Council Policy 3403 -

Telecommunications Facilities Guidelines

Land & Economic Development Manager - re: Checkmate
Hill Condominium Plan 902 1647:

(a)  Offer to Purchase Lane in Plan 852 HW

(b)  Road Closure Bylaw 3293/2001
(Consideration of 1st Reading of the Bylaw)

(c)  Parkland Community Planning Services — re: Land
Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/ WW-2001 / Rezoning of

.17

..18

.45

.79

. .84
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()
(6)
(7)

(8)

Lane between Lot 8, Block 5, Plan 012 1322 from Lane
to R3 Residential Multiple Family District /
Checkmate Hill Condominium Association
(Consideration of 1st Reading of the Bylaw)

8. EL & P Manager — re: Revision to Regulated Rate Option
Tariff /| Bylaw 3273/C-2001 - Amendment to Bylaw
3273/2000 - Electric Utility Bylaw Appendix “D” -
Regulated Rate Option Tariff
(Consideration of 3 Readings of the Bylaw)

9. Environmental Advisory Board - re:  Pesticide Use
Legislation — D. Rew Inquiry

10.  Greater Downtown/Riverside Meadows Policy Committee
Chair - re: Recommendations from the Policy Committee -
Traffic Initiatives Study

CORRESPONDENCE

PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS

NOTICES OF MOTION

1. Community Services Director — re: December 3, 2001
Notice of Motion from Councillor Dawson re Collicutt Centre

WRITTEN INQUIRIES

1. Director of Corporate Services —re: December 3, 2001

Written Inquiry from Councillor Dawson re:
Capital Cost Analysis ~ Collicutt Centre

.87

.97

..110

117

..130

..144
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)

BYLAWS

1.

3156/UU-2001 - Land Use Bylaw Amendment — Red Deer
Investments Inc. / Rezoning former Chrysler Site from I1
Industrial (Business Service) to C2 Commercial (Regional
and District Shoppirng Centre)

(2nd & 3rd Readings)

3292/2001 - Road Closure Bylaw / Gaetz Avenue & 22nd
Street.
(2nd & 3rd Readings)

3156/TT-2001 ~ Land Use Bylaw Amendment - Addition of
Amateur Radio Towers as a Discretionary use in R1, R1A,
R1IN and R2 Districts / Addition of Drinking Establishments
in C4 Commercial (Major Arterial) District / Renumbering
of Section regarding Parking Standards in R2 Residential
(Medium Density) District to Proper Bylaw Section Number
/ Addition of “Bingo Hall” and “Casino” to definition of
“Commercial Recreation Facility”. (15t Reading)

3156/ WW-2001 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment - Rezoning of
Lane between Lot 8, Block 5, Plan 012 1322 from Lane to R3
Residential Multiple Family District / Checkmate Hill
Condominium Association. (15t Reading)

3293/2001 - Road Closure Bylaw - Checkmate Hill
Condominium Plan 902 1647. (1st Reading)

3273/C-2001 - Amendment to Bylaw No. 3273/2000 - the
Electric Utility Bylaw/ Appendix “D” - Regulated Rate
Option Tariff. (3 Readings)
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item No. 1

Public Hearings November 20, 2001 ;
TO: City Council
FROM: City Clerk
RE: " Public Hearings:

Red Deer Investments Inc.:

(1) Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001

(2) Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

History

At the Monday, November 19, 2001 meeting of Council, Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001
and Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 were given first reading.

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the Chrysler Parts
Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping

Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192
hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A.

Public Consultation Process

Public Hearings have been advertised for the above noted bylaws to be held on Monday, December 17,
2001 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers during Council’s regular meeting. The owners of the
properties and those bordering the site have been notified by letter of the Public Hearings.

Recommendations
That following the Public Hearings, Council may:
¢)) proceed with 2nd and 3+ readings of Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001, and

2 proceed with 2nd and 3+ readings of Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001.

Kelly’Kloss
City Clerk

/chk



PROPOSED LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT
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item No. 2 A

Uban Planing
October 30th, 2001 .'":;m
City of Red Deer VIA FAX: 403-346-6195
city Hall ORIGINAL VIA MAIL
Box 5008
4914 - 48th Avenue
RED DEER, Alberta
T4N 3T4

BACK yP ,
Attention:  Mr. Kelly Kloss NoT e <n [NFORMATION
City Clerk “=v TTEDTOCOUNG)L

Dear Sir:
Re: Re-Zoning of Plan 5326HW, Lot A

Red Deer, Alberta
our Project No. 01-153

On behalf of Kosowan Developments Inc., we hereby make Application for Re-Zoning
of the above Parcel from its Current Zoning 11 to C2. (See attached Schedule A for
Project Site Plan.) The reason for this Re-Zoning Application is to revise the Zoning of
this Parcel from the existing Zoning of 11 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2
commercial (Regional and District Shopping Centre) District, which is the appropriate
Land Use given the Re-Development of the adjacent lands both North and South of the
Site between Gaetz Avenue and Taylor Drive. The Proposed Development of the lands
is for a Commercial Retail Shopping Centre.

With this Application is the request to also Re-Zone the Proposed Road Closure Lands
to the East side of the property along Gaetz Avenue as the Developeris concluding this
purchase with the City of Red Deer. (Refer to attached Schedule B.)

We trust this is compiete and you will advise of any further information you may
require and the anticipated date of First Reading at Council. Upon review, please also
advise of any Fees or Advertising Costs that we need to provide payment for.

We thank you in advance for your attention to this.

Yours truly,

ARNDT TKALCIC ARCHITECTS

f&c@w&/ﬁx/

Rick Arndt, MRAIC

/tva

Enclosures

ccC Mr. Dave Kosowan
kKosowan Developments Inc.

c.C. Mr. John Little

Witten LLP

Arndt Tkalcic P IRE IR

. Rick Aindt *

§  M.Ach., MRAIC
. Joseph Tkalcic *
. M.Ach., MRAIC

Fred Bachand
Senior Associate

ik David Embury

i Senior Associate
. Jason Hess

- Associate

& Km Ma
L Associate

10315-109 Street

Edmonton,
Alberta,
T5J TN3

.. Tel:780/428 8001

Fax: 780/426 2734

ata@atarch.com
* Denotes Aichitect's Corporation
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A Uban Planning
october 31st, 2001 .lmmm
Amdt Tkalcic FX A IRNTRE)

g Rick Amat *

;{ M.AICh., MRAIC

L Joseph Tkalcic *

| MAch, MRAIC
City of Red Deer VIA FAX: 403-346-6195 Fred Bachand
City Hall ORIGINAL VIA MAIL - Senior Associate
Box 5008 E David Embury
4914 - 48th Avenue . Senior Associate
RED DEER, Alberta . Joson Hess
T4N 3T4 . Associate

& Kim Mc
Attention: Mr. Kelly Kloss ¢ Associate

City Clerk

Dear Sir:
Re: Re-Zoning of Plan 5326HW, Lot A

Red Deer, Alberta
Our Project No. 01-153

Further to our letter of October 30th, 2001, we wish to correct the name of the Oowner
as, Red Deer Investments Inc. We apologize for any confusion this may have caused.

Also attached is the Cconsent to Re-Districting Application of the property by the
existing Owner.

Yours truly,

ARNDT TKALCIC ARCHITECTS

Hoke Conenz/2on ‘

Rick Arndt, MRAIC

/tva
Enclosure

F 10315-109 Street

Edmonton,
Alberta,

158J IN3

% Tel:780/428 8001

Fax; 780/426 2734

ata@atarch.com
* Denotes Architect's Corporation
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- - - — AN Vi Ve LUV LF £
CONSENT 0 RE-DISTRICTING APPLICATION

To:  THE CITY OF RED DFER
Re:  Plan 5326HW

LotA

Containing 4.71 hectares (11. “amu)mmorlcua

Excepting thereout:

Hectares (Acres) wore or less
A) Plan 9021457 Road 0.080 0.20
Excepting thereout all mineg and minerals;
(the “Property*)

The underzigned owner(s) ot the Property hereby couscnt to ARNDT TKALCIC ARCHITECTS
INC. making application to re-district the Property from I-1 (Industrial (Business Service)) to C-2
(Regional and District Shopping Centre)) on behall of the purchaser of the Properly RED DEER
INVESTMENT'S INC.,

DATED effiective October 30, 2001,

SHAWN HOLDINGS LTD. . NORALI INVESTMENTS LTD,

MS ~ 9509 156" Suoct MS - 9509458 Streot
Bdmonton, Alberta TSP 4J5 Edmontof, Alberta TSP 4J5
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Date: November 13, 2001

To: Kelly Kloss, City Clerk

From: Paul Meyette, City Planning Manager
Ryan Strader, Inspections and Licensing Manager

RE: Rezoning Request I1 to C2
Plan 5326HW, Bylaw 3156 UU-2001, Map #37/2001

Arndt Tkalcic Architects are requesting a rezoning from I1 to C2 for the land formerly
used as the Chrysler Parts Depot.

Background

This site is one of the only two industrial sites along Gaetz Avenue. The properties
North, South and East are currently designated commercial. The Municipal Development
Plan (MDP) shows this site as commercial. The MDP is the only plan directly affecting
this site.

Type of Commercial Zoning

The types of commercial zoning along south Gaetz Avenue are the C4 Commercial
(Major Arterial) District and the C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping Centre)
District. The C2 District is used for larger parcels three hectares or more while the C4
District is used for parcels less than three hectares. This site is over five hectares;
therefore the C2 District is appropriate for this site.

Planning Comments

This rezoning complies with the Municipal Development Plan and is a logical extension

of commercial use on adjacent properties.

2.2/

\Chfs\data\PCPS\General\Drajts\PaulMe\Memos\City Clerk-Chrysler Depot rezoning 11.01.doc
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pg 2

Recommendation

Staff recommend that Council rezone the former Chrysler site from I1 Industrial
(Business Service) to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping Centre) District.

l{an Strader,

N

Paul Meyette, N
City Planning Manager Inspections and Licensing Manager
cc. Colleen Jensen, Director of Community Services

Ken Haslop, Manager of Engineering Services

WChfs\data\PCPS\General\Drafts\PaulMe\Memos\City Clerk-Chrysler Depot rezoning 11.01.doc



38

Memo

Date: November 9, 2001

To: Kelly Kloss, City Clerk

From: Howard Thompson, Land & Economic Development Manager

Re: Red Deer Investments Inc. - Rezoning Request Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure

Land and Economic Development support the rezoning request for the above site and the
Gaetz Avenue Service Road from I1 to C2 to accommodate the redevelopment of the site. It
is my understanding that the Red Deer Investments Inc. is proposing to demolish the old
Chrysler warehouse and develop the site for commercial use similar to Gaetz Avenue
Crossing and Southpointe Common. The first phase of development is proposed for the
east half of the site with an anchor tenant and several stand-alone commercial retail units.
No plans have been determined for the west half of the site at this time.

In conjunction with the rezoning request, the Red Deer Investments Inc. has submitted the
attached offer to purchase for the Gaetz Avenue Service Road, as shown on the attached
plan, and requested an option to purchase any remnant City lands off Taylor Drive.

Gaetz Avenue Service Road:

The City no longer requires this service road, which was removed and landscaped several
years ago, as the Developers of Southpointe Common have built an auxiliary lane on Gaetz
Avenue from Chrysler Avenue south to accommodate access into their site.
Approximately 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 are
available for sale and consolidation into Lot A. With regard to the purchase price, an in-
house appraisal has determined the fair market value to be $7.00 per square foot. As the
majority of this area is encumbered by underground utilities, limiting the use to parking
and landscaping, a 50% reduction to $3.50 per square foot is warranted for a total purchase
price of approximately $72,300. Ir addition to the purchase price, as this site was originally
developed in the County, Red Deer Investments Inc. is responsible for payment of offsite
levies on the total area of Lot A plus the road areas to be purchased. The Red Deer
Investments Inc. would also be responsible for any costs related to the rezoning, road
closure, survey and plan of consolidation. The net proceeds of the land sale will be credited
to the Road Reserve Fund.

Taylor Drive and 22™ Street:
In the future, an exit ramp is designed to come off of Highway #2 and connect up with
Taylor Drive, which will require the current intersection at 22" Street to be relocated
further to the north. The City acquired the necessary right-of-way for this new road
alignment as part of the Taylor Drive project in 1994, however, it is my understanding that
further capital work to rebuild 22™ Street is not anticipated for many years or until the exit
ramp is required. Although Engineering Services supports the sale in principle of an area
shown approximately as Future Land on the attached plan, they indicate that it is premature
/2
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Memo

Kelly Kloss
Page 2

to sell this land at this time, as the road design has not been completed nor has the exact
area of land been determined. In addition, Recreation, Parks and Culture do not support
the sale of any of the Municipal Reserve land between Taylor Drive and Lot A.

The Red Deer Investments Inc.’s request for an option to purchase for the Taylor Drive
remnant lands is not necessary, as they are the only adjacent landowner that could
purchase and utilize the land and essentially have the equivalent of a Right of First Refusal.
At such time in the future that the City is prepared to sell these surplus lands, Red Deer
Investments Inc. could re-submit their offer and request for rezoning. Red Deer
Investments Inc. is aware of this and as they do not have any specific development plans
for this area yet, it is acceptable to them.

Recommendation:

That City Council;

1. Approve the rezoning of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW and the Gaetz Service road to C2.

2. Approve the sale of 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac), more or less, contained in Road Plans 5326
HW and 902 1457, adjacent to the east of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW to Red Deer Investments
Inc., subject to the following conditions:

e The purchase price of the service road to be $3.50 per square foot plus GST based on
the area determined by legal survey.

Red Deer Investments Inc. completing the purchase of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW.

Red Deer Investments Inc. consolidating the service road with Lot A, Plan 5326 HW.

The proceeds of the service road sale to be credited to the Road Reserve Fund.

City Council approval to rezone the service road to C2.

All costs associated with the rezoning, road closure, survey and plan of

consolidation would be the responsibility of the Red Deer Investments Inc.

A Land Sale Agreement satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

e City Council approval for the following road closure described as,
“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within the
limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and minerals”.

3. Agree to not sell or option any City lands along Taylor Drive and 22™ Street to Red Deer
Investments Inc. at this time and to encourage them to re-apply in the future.

H by

Howard Thompson

Attach.

c Director of Development Services Engineering Services Manager
Director of Community Services Recreation, Parks and Culture Manager
EL&P Manager Inspections and Licensing Manager

Emergency Services Manager
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1 John Little - Chrysler Lands ) ™ ' Page 1 |
From: John Little
To: howard@city.re-deer.ab.ca
Date: 10/31/01 2:44pm
Subject: Chrysler Lands

| am the solicitor for David Kosowan and Red Deer Invasiments Inc. which is purchasing the former
Chrysler site between Gaetz and Taylor. Further to your meeting with David, he needs and the city wishes
to sell some remnants along Gaetz and Taylor, both of which would be incorporated into the site.

Wae understand that the City will prepare a purchase agreement. On behalf of our client Red Deer
Investmenits Inc., we propose the following terms for that agreement;

Purchaser: Red Deer Investments Inc. c/o our office
Price: $3.50 per square foat
Closing: February 28, 2002 which is the closing date for the main site.

Conditions:  Rezoning of the remnants to C-2 concurrently with the main site and approval of a plan of
consolidation with the main site before February 1, 2001. -

Option: The purchaser can within one week before closing elect not to purchase the Taylor
remnants but has the option to do so for one year past February 28, 2002. The purchaser may not need
these remnants at the same time as it develops the Gaetz side of the site.

Deposit: 1 suggest a nominal deposit of $1000.00. The purchaser has paid $250,000 unconditionally
on the main site, and realistically no other purchaser is interested in these remnants.

| look forward to hearing from you.

ccC: amdi@atarch.com
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250-092 A

Date: November 13, 2001

To: City Clerk

From: Engineering Services Manager

Re: Lot A, Plan 5326 H.W. - 2110 Gaetz Avenue
Rezoning

The Engineering Services Department has the following comments regarding
the former Chrysler Warehouse site:

1. We have no objection to the closure and sale of the former West Gaetz
Avenue Service Road right of way. Attached is a drawing showing the
proposed closure area.

2. We have no objection to the proposed rezoning of Lot A and the Service
Road right of way.

3. We recommend that the area on the west side of this parcel, adjacent to

Taylor Drive, be left as is until more definite development plans are
available and the need to re-align 22 Street is confirmed.

Ken G. Hdslop, P. Eng.
Engineering Services Manager

SS/emr
Att.
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RPC ~9.646

DATE: November 6, 2001

TO: City Clerk

FROM: Greg Scott, Community Development & Planning Coordinator

RE: Arndt Tkalcic Architects - Rezoning Request I1 to C2; Plan 5326 HW
(South Hill)

The Recreation, Parks and Culture Department has reviewed Arndt Tkalcic Architects request
for the rezoning of Plan 5326 HW, Lot A from I1 to C2 and provides the following comments:

1. Support of the rezoning of the I1 to C2 not including the P1 Lot 6 MR along the west side.
The Recreation, Parks & Culture Department does not support municipal reserve disposal
within Lot 6 at this time.

2. Have no objections to the proposed rezoning and road closure of the lands that run along
the east side of the property adjacent to Gaetz Avenue.

3. Some of the natural features within this land parcel have been identified as potential
preservation areas. It will be the role of the Recreation, Parks & Culture Department to work
with the developer in the review of these areas.

4. 1If subdivision is to occur, municipal reserve dedication is owed on this land parcel.

If you have any questions, please call me at 342-8340.

{ J{u g/»ﬁ/

Greg Scott

Jb
Don Batchelor, Recreation, Farks & Culture Manager
Tony Lindhout, Parkland Community Planning Services
Howard Thompson, Land and Economic Development Manager
Ken Haslop, Engineering Services Manager



Comments:

We agree with the recommendations of City Administration. A Public Hearing would be held on
Monday, December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers during Council’s regular
meeting.

“G. D. Surkan”
Mayor

“N. Van Wyk”
City Manager
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Office of the City Clerk

November 20, 2001

Fax: 1-780-426-2734

Mr. R. Arndt

Arndt Tkalcic Architects
10315 - 109 Street
Edmonton, AB T5J 1N3

Dear Mr. Arndt:

Re: Red Deer Investments Inc.:
1) Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
(2)  Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoring Request I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

At the City of Red Deer’s Council meeting held Monday, November 19, 2001, first
reading was given to Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 and Road Closure Bylaw
3292/2001. Copies of the bylaws are attached for your information.

Council also passed the fo}liowing resolution:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer having considered the report
from the Land and Economic Development Manager -~ re: Red Deer
Investments Inc — Rezoning Request Lot A, Plan 5326 HW, Offer to Purchase
the Service Road and Partial Road Closure, hereby considers approval of the
sale of 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac), more or less, contained in Road Plans 5326 HW
and 902 1457, adjacent to the-east of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW to Red Deer
Investments Inc, subject to the following conditions:

a) The purchase price of the service road to be $3.50 per square
foot plus GST based on the area determined by legal survey.
b) Red Deer Investments Inc. completing the purchase of Lot A,

Plan 5326 HW.
o) Red Deer Investments Inc. consolidating the service road with

Lot A, Plan 5326 HW.

d) The proceeds of the service road sale to be credited to the
Road Reserve Fund.

e) City Council approval to rezone the service road to C2.

4914 - 48 Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: 01tyclerk@c1ty red-deer.ab.ca Web: http://www.city.red-deer.ab.ca



f) All costs associated with the rezoning, road closure, survey and
plan of consolidation would be the responsibility of Red Deer
Investments Inc.

8) A Land Sale Agreement satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

h) Agree to not sell or option any City lands along Taylor
Drive and 22nd Street to Red Deer Investments Inc. at this
time and to encourage them to re-apply in the future.

i) The passage of Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-
2001 and the appropriate Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001.

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the
Chrysler Parts Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial
(Regional and District Shopping Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac) within Road
Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A.

This office will now proceed with the advertising for the Public Hearings to be held
on Monday, December 17, 2001, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall
during Council’s regular meeting,.

In accordance with the Land Use Bylaw, you are required to deposit with the City
Clerk, prior to public advertising, an amount equal to the estimated cost of
advertising, which in this instance is $400. We require this deposit by no later than
10:00 a.m., Wednesday, November 28, 2001, in order to proceed with the advertising.
Once the actual cost of advertising is known, you will either be invoiced for or
refunded the difference.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to
call me.

Sincerely,

.

Kelly Kloss ,
City Clerk”

KK /chk

/attach.

C Parkland Community Planning Services
Land & Economic Development Manager



BYLAW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amer_ldBylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red

Deer.

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FtED DEER, IN
'THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule -B” of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001

attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D.2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this  day of

A.D. 2001.
A.D. 2001.

A.D. 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
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BYLAW NO. 3292/2001
Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the Gity of Red Deer, as described herein.
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby' closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within
the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and

minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  19th  day of  November 2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this day of 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK




Council Decision - Monday November 19,2001

DATE: November 20, 2001

TO: Howard Thompson, Land & Economic Development Manager
FROM: City Clerk |

RE: Red Deer Investments Inc.:

(1)  Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001

(2) Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

Reference Report:

Land & Economic Development Manager, dated November 9, 2001

Bylaw Réadings:

Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 and Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 were given first readings -copies

are attached.

Resolutions:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer having considered the report from
the Land and Economic Development Manager - re: Red Deer Investments Inc -
Rezoning Request Lot A, Plan 5326 HW, Offer to Purchase the Service Road and
Partial Road Closure, hereby considers approval of the sale of 0.192 hectares (0.47
ac), more or less, contained in Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457, adjacent to the
east of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW to Red Deer Investments Inc, subject to the

following conditions:

a)

b)
c)

d)

i)

The purchase price of the service road to be $3.50 per square foot plus
GST based on the area determined by legal survey.
Red Deer Investments Inc. completing the purchase of Lot A, Plan 5326

HW.
Red Deer Investments Inc. consolidating the service road with Lot A, Plan

5326 HW.

The proceeds of the service road sale to be credited to the Road Reserve
Fund.

City Council approval to rezone the service road to C2.

All costs associated with the rezoning, road closure, survey and plan of
consolidation would be the responsibility of Red Deer Investments Inc.

A Land Sale Agreement satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

Agree to not sell or option any City lands along Taylor Drive and 22nd
Street to Red Deer Investments Inc. at this time and to encourage them to
re-apply in the future.

The passage of Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 and the
appropriate Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001.



Council Decision — November 19, 2001
Land & Economic Development Manager
Page 2

Report Back to Council:
Yes. Public Hearings will be held or. Monday, December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers

during Council’s regular meeting.

Comments/Further Action:

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the Chrysler Parts
Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping
Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192
hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A. This
office will now proceed with the advertising for a Public Hearing. Armdt Tkalcic Architects, on behalf
of Red Deer Investments Inc., will be responsible for the advertising costs in this instance.

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

/chk
attchs.

c Director of Development Services

Community Services Director

Engineering Services Manager

Community Development & Planning Coordinator
Land & Economic Development Manager
Parkland Community Planning Services
Inspections & Licensing Manager
'C. Adams, Administrative Assistant, City Clerk’s



BYLLAW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red
Deer. ’ '

- NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
- THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule »B” of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001

attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D. 2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN'OPEN COUNCIL this day of A.D. 2001.

READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of A.D. 2001.

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this day of ~ A.D. 2001.
CITY CLERK

MAYOR
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BYLAW NO. 3292/2001
Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereb)r closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within
the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and

minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  19th  dayof November 2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.

READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN CQUNCIL this day of 2001.

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this day of 2001.
CITY CLERK

MAYOR




45
item No. 1

Bylaws

BYLAW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw MNo. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red

Deer.

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule B” of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001

attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this  day of

A.D. 2001.
A.D. 2001.
A.D. 2001.

A.D. 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
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ltem No. 3

BYLAW NO. 3292/2001

Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within

the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and
minerals.”
READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this  day of 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK



SOUTH GAETZ AVENUE
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
& Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001

DESCRIPTION: Closure of the lane adjacent to the former Chrysler Parts
' | Depot to allow sale & redesignation of the site from I1 to C2
to allow the development of a shopping centre

FIRST READING: November 19, 2001
FIRST PUBLICATION: | November 30, 2001
SECOND PUBLICATION: December 7, 2001
PUBLI HEARING & SECOND READING: December 17, 2001
THIRD READING:

LETTERS REQUIRED TO PROPERTY OWNERS: YES NO

DEPOSIT? YES®&$ 4oo. NOQ  BY: HnptT T2alcrc fHchitects

ACTUAL COST OF ADVERTISING:

17 $_3p0. 2 g™ $ 3p0.'%  TOTAL: § éaa’fj"’ fa
MAP PREPARATION: $ N / 3
TOTAL COST: $ boo.**
LESS DEPOSIT RECEIVED: s (4eo. ’) |
‘ 29
AMOUNT OWING/ (REFUND): $ A 00 -

INVOICE NO.: \ 133 000

{Account No. 59.5901)
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THE CITY OF RED DEER

City Clerk's Department Payment Receipt ol /12 3

Year Month Day

N.me: A Dfo( I)R f,) “ ! ")':’ T/IIK ‘ n :‘ /‘/:)C . Refefﬂnce: X [/ C/ ;‘/'7{cff L‘rﬂ L’/IT _;;/.5 \r//(/ty - 0'?6(‘@/
' oML CLOSURE I i) Len s
: NOT VALID ULESS MACHINE PRINTED HERE
ITEM Account Number Subledger | T | AssetiD No. Amount CLAZESTE RSN CTIHDGE L i
(Cost Centre.Object.Subsidiary)
4.4
LU.B. Advert 59.5901 | o0 ..
DAS. Fee 54,5722 I
D.AB. Advert 54,5901 ||
GST. REGISTRATION#  R118311785 TOTAL 4f60. 00 Il
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A Utban Plarning
Intesior Dasign
Architecture

The City of Red Deer
Office of the City Clerk
Box 5008

Red Deer, Alberta

T4N 374

Attention: Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

Re: Red Deer Investments inc.:
(1) Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
(2) Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request 11 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

On behalf of Red Deer Investments Inc., we attach a cheque for $400.00 as a deposit to
cover the costs of public advertising, as requested.

We trust this is complete.

Yours truly,

ARNDT TKALCIC ARCHITECTS

ls

-

4
RICRAmMat, MRAIC

/ssh
Enclosure

c.c. Red Deer Investment Inc.

|Arndt Tkalcic

% Rick Amdf *
| M.Arch., MRAIC

Joseph Tkalcic *
. MArich., MRAIC

Fred Bachand

| Senior Associate

. David Embury
_ Senior Associate

Jason Hess

Associate

Kim Ma
Associate

' 10315-109 Street

Edmonton,
Alberta,

T5J IN3

. Tel:780/428 8001

Fax: 780/426 2734

ata@atarch.com

* Denotes Architect’s Corporation



DATE: November 21, 2001
TO: Norma Lovell, Assessment

FROM: C.G. Adams,
City Clerk’s Office

RE: LUB Amendment 3156/UU-2001 — South Gaetz Avenue

Please provide Sheri Eklund with the names and addresses of the subject property owners
and all contiguous/adjacent property owners as outlined on the attached maps.

It would be helpful if the lists could be received at your earliest convenience in order to
process the letters within the required time period. I have attached the map that appeared on
the Council agenda for your reference.

Thanks Norma.

.G. Adahms
City Clerks’ Office

Attach.
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Box 5008
Red Deer, Alberta
T4N 3T4

~
3
Q
S
s
Ry
3
S

Office of the City Clerk

November 20, 2001

Mr. R. Arndt

Arndt Tkalcic Architects
10315 - 109 Street
Edmonton, AB T5J 1IN3

Dear Mr. Arndt:

Fax: 1-780-426-2734

Re: Red Deer Investments Inc.:
(1)  Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure
Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
(2)  Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

At the City of Red Deer’s Council meeting held Monday, November 19, 2001, first
reading was given to Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 and Road Closure Bylaw
3292/2001. Copies of the bylaws are attached for your information.

Council also passed the foliowing resolution:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer having considered the report
from the Land and Economic Development Manager - re: Red Deer
Investments Inc — Rezoning Request Lot A, Plan 5326 HW, Offer to Purchase
the Service Road and Partial Road Closure, hereby considers approval of the
sale of 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac), more or less, contained in Road Plans 5326 HW
and 902 1457, adjacent to the-east of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW to Red Deer
Investments Inc, subject to the following conditions:

a)
b)
W)
d)

e)

The purchase price of the service road to be $3.50 per square
foot plus GST based on the area determined by legal survey.
Red Deer Investments Inc. completing the purchase of Lot A,
Plan 5326 HW.

Red Deer Investments Inc. consolidating the service road with
Lot A, Plan 5326 HW.

The proceeds of the service road sale to be credited to the

Road Reserve Fund.
City Council approval to rezone the service road to C2.

4914 - 48th Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: c1tyc1erk@cxty red-deer.ab.ca Web: http://www.city.red-deer.ab.ca




f) All costs associated with the rezoning, road closure, survey and
plan of consolidation would be the responsibility of Red Deer
Investments Inc.

g) A Land Sale Agreement satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

h) Agree to not sell or option any City lands along Taylor
Drive and 22nd Street to Red Deer Investments Inc. at this

© time and to encourage them to re-apply in the future.

i) The passage of Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-
2001 and the appropriate Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001.

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the
Chrysler Parts Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial
(Regional and District Shopping Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac) within Road
Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A.

This office will now proceed with the advertising for the Public Hearings to be held
on Monday, December 17, 2001, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall
during Council’s regular meeting.

In accordance with the Land Use Bylaw, you are required to deposit with the City
Clerk, prior to public advertising, an amount equal to the estimated cost of
advertising, which in this instance is $400. We require this deposit by no later than
10:00 a.m., Wednesday, November 28, 2001, in order to proceed with the advertising.
Once the actual cost of advertising is known, you will either be invoiced for or

refunded the difference.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to
call me.

Sincerely,

s

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk”

KK/chk

/attach.

C Parkland Community Planning Services
Land & Economic Development Manager



BYLLAW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red

Deer.

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule kB" of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001

attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D. 2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this  day of

A.D. 2001.
A.D. 2001.

A.D. 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
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BYLAW NO. 3292/2001

Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within
the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and

minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  19th  day of November
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this day of

2001.
2001.
2001.

2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK




DATE: November 20, 2001
TO: Howard Thompson, Land & Economic Development Manager
FROM: City Clerk
RE: Red Deer Investments Inc.:
(1)  Offer to Purchase the Service Road and Partial Road Closure

(2)

Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW

Reference Report:

Land & Economic Development Manager, dated November 9, 2001

Bylaw Readings:

Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 and Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 were given first readings -copies

are attached.

Resolutions:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer having considered the report from
the Land and Economic Development Manager — re: Red Deer Investments Inc -
Rezoning Request Lot A, Plan 5326 HW, Offer to Purchase the Service Road and
Partial Road Closure, hereby considers approval of the sale of 0.192 hectares (0.47
ac), more or less, contained in Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457, adjacent to the
east of Lot A, Plan 5326 HW to Red Deer Investments Inc, subject to the

following conditions:

a)
b)
c)

d)

i)

The purchase price of the service road to be $3.50 per square foot plus
GST based on the area determined by legal survey.

Red Deer Investments Inc. completing the purchase of Lot A, Plan 5326
HW.

Red Deer Investments Inc. consolidating the service road with Lot A, Plan

5326 HW.
The proceeds of the service road sale to be credited to the Road Reserve

Fund.

City Council approval to rezone the service road to C2.

All costs associated with the rezoning, road closure, survey and plan of
consolidation would be the responsibility of Red Deer Investments Inc.

A Land Sale Agreement satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

Agree to not sell or option any City lands along Taylor Drive and 22nd
Street to Red Deer Investments Inc. at this time and to encourage them to
re-apply in the future.

The passage of Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 and the
appropriate Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001.



Council Decision ~ November 19, 2001
Land & Economic Development Manager
Page 2

Report Back to Cbuncil;
Yes. Public Hearings will be held on Monday, December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers

during Council's regular meeting.

Comments/Further Action:

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the Chrysler Parts
Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping
Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192
hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A. This
office will now proceed with the advertising for a Public Hearing. Arndt Tkalcic Architects, on behalf
of Red Deer Investments Inc., will be responsible for the advertising costs in this instance.

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

/chk
attchs.

c Director of Development Services
Community Services Director
Engineering Services Manager
Community Development & Planning Coordinator
Land & Economic Development Manager
Parkland Community Planning Services
Inspections & Licensing Manager

'C. Adams, Administrative Assistant, City Clerk’s



BYI.AW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red
Deer. ' ‘

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule B of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001
attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D. 2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN'OPEN COUNCIL this day of A.D. 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of A.D. 2001.
AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this  day of A.D. 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK



BYLAW NO. 3292/2001
Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within
the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and

minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  19th  day of November 2001.

READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this day of 2001.
AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this day of 2001.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
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DATE: December 18, 2001

TO: P. Meyette, Parkland'Community Planning Services
G. Scott, Inspections & Licensing Manager
H. Thompson, Land & Economic Development Manager

FROM: City Clerk

RE: Red Deer Investments Inc:
(@)  Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
-Rezoning Request - I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW
(b) Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001

Reference Report:
City Clerk, dated November 20, 2001,

B'ylavaeading’s:

Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 and Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 were given second and third
readings. Copies of the bylaws are attached.

Resolutions:
Report Back to Council: No .

Comments/Further Action:

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the Chrysler Parts
Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping
Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192
~ hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A. A
certified copy of Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 is attached for your information.

Kelly'Kloss
City Cler

/chk
attchs.

c Director of Development Services
Community Services Director
Engineering Services Manager
Community Development & Flanning Coordinator
City Assessor
C. Adams, Administrative Assistant
S:Eklund, Clerk Steno



~ Council Decision — Monday December 17, 2001_

DATE: December 18, 2001 R ;

e B

TO: P. Meyette, Parkland"Community Planning Services
G. Scott, Inspections & Licensing Manager
H. Thompson, Land & Economic Development Manager

FROM: City Clerk

RE: Red Deer Investments Inc:
(@)  Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning Request - I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW
(b) Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001

Reference Report:
City Clerk, dated November 20, 2001,

Bylaw Readings:

Land Use Bylaw 3156/UU-2001 and Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 were given second and third
readings. Copies of the bylaws are attached.

Resolutions:
Report Back to Council: No

Comments/Further Action:

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the Chrysler Parts
Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial (Regional and District Shopping
Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192
hectares (0.47 ac) within Road Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A. A
certified copy of Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 is attached for your information.

Kelly'Kloss
City Cler,

/chk
attchs.

c Director of Development Services
Community Services Director
Engineering Services Manager
Community Development & Planning Coordinator
City Assessor
C. Adams, Administrative Assistant
- 5. Eklund, Clerk Steno
Doue  wtirmisky



BYLAW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red
Deer.

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule 'B” of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001
attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D. 2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th  day of December A.D.2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th day of December A.D.2001.

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this 17 day of DecemberA D. 2001.

i éL




The City of Red Deer

PROPOSED LAND USE BYLAWAMENDMENT
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BYLAW NO. 3292/2001
Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby closed:
“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within

the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and
minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME INOPEN COUNCIL this  19th  dayof November  2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th day of December 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  17¢h day Of pecember 2001.
AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this 17thday of December 2001.

R 079N

Lﬁ"{{ﬁ/’ |

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE ORIGIMAL BYLAW.




Office of the City Clerk

December 18, 2001
Box 5008
Red Deer, Alberta
T4N 314
Mr. R. Arndt

Arndt Tkalcic Architects
10315 — 109 Street
Edmonton, AB T5J 1N3

Dear Mr. Arndt:

Re: Red Deer Investments Inc:
(1)  Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001
Rezoning from I1 to C2, Lot A, Plan 5326 HW
(2)  Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001 ~ Gaetz Avenue & 22" Street

At the City of Red Deer’s Council Meeting held December 17, 2001, a Public Hearing
was held with respect to Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 and Road
Closure Bylaw 3292/2001. Following the Public Hearing, the noted bylaws were
given second and third readings, copies of which are attached.

Land Use Bylaw Amendment 3156/UU-2001 rezones the land formerly used as the
Chrysler Parts Depot from I1 Industrial (Business Service) District to C2 Commercial
(Regional and District Shopping Centre) District. Road Closure Bylaw 3292/2001
accommodates the closure of approximately 0.192 hectares (0.47 ac) within Road
Plans 5326 HW and 902 1457 for sale and consolidation into Lot A.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions or require further
clarification.
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elly’Kloss
City Clerk
/chk
/attach.
C. Land & Economic Development Officer
Parkland Community Planning Services

4914 - 48tk Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4 )
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http://www.city.red-deer.ab.ca




BYL.AW NO. 3156/UU-2001

Being a bylaw to amend Bylaw No. 3156/96, the Land Use Bylaw of the City of Red
Deer. ’ ‘

NOW THEREFORE, THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, IN
THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The “Use District Map F5” contained in “Schedule 'B” of the Land Use Bylaw is
hereby amended in accordance with the Land Use District Map No. 37/2001
attached hereto and forming part of the bylaw.

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 19th day of NovemberA.D. 2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th  day of December A.D.2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th day of December A D.2001.

AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this 17 day of DecemberA D. 2001.
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The City of Red Deer

PROPOSED LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT
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BYLAW NO. 3292/2001
Being a bylaw to close a portion of road in the City of Red Deer, as described herein.
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RED DEER, ALBERTA, ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1 The following portion of roadway in the City of Red Deer is hereby closed:

“All that portion of Main Street and Road Cut-off which lies within
the limits of Plan 022- excepting thereout all mines and
minerals.”

READ A FIRST TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  19th  dayof November  2001.
READ A SECOND TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this 17th day of Decenber 2001.
READ A THIRD TIME IN OPEN COUNCIL this  17th  day of pecember 2001.
AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK this 17tiday of December 2001.

‘—A’YQQMW N~ M
MAYO ATY nghl’(/ /
/
CERTIFIED T.OIIBE A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE ORIGV AL BYLAW,




Item No. 1

Reports 4
DATE: December 6, 2001
TO: City Council
FROM: City Clerk
RE: Downtown Business Association’s 2002 Budget

History

In 1984 Council received a request from businesses located in the Downtown area to
establish a Business Revitalization Zone (BRZ) in accordance with the Municipal
Government Act. Based on this request and input from the downtown businesses,
Council agreed to establish this zone. The Downtown Business Association’s Board of
Directors is responsible for the management of this zone, including preparation and
administration of its budget.

Although this Board operates autonomously from The City of Red Deer, we are linked
in the following ways:

1. Council appoints the members of the Board
2. The BRZ budget is approved by Council

3. Any changes to the BRZ Bylaw, including its boundaries, must be approved by
Council.

4. The City completes the business assessment, invoices and collects the BRZ Tax
for the Board. These invoices are sent out in February of each year to every
person assessed for business purposes in the BRZ. The due date for payment is
always March 31st.

Consultation

In mid November 2001, the City Clerk’s Office received the Downtown Business
Association’s Budget for 2002. In accordance with Council’s previous resolution,
individual notices were mailed to every person assessed for business purposes within
this zone, stating that on December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m., Council will:

1. Consider written or verbal presentations concerning this budget.

2. Consider approval of the budget following any presentations.

2/

Docs No. 193726



City Council 5
December 6, 2001
Page 2

Financial Implications

The report and budget from the Downtown Business Association outlines the financial
implications of approving this budget. If approval of this budget is received, an
amendment to the BRZ Tax Bylaw would come forward to Council at a future meeting.

Recommendations

That following any presentations, Council consider the approval of the 2002 BRZ
Budget.

—

/’*/,
I e
Id ‘ / /

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

/chk
attach.



Office of the City Clerk

November 28, 2001

To All Businesses in the BRZ

Box 5008
Red Deer, Alberta . .

TAN 3T4 Dear Sir/Madam:
Re:  Downtown Business Association — 2002 Budget

Request for Your Comments
History

In 1984 the Downtown Business Community formed a Business Revitalization Zone
(BRZ) with a mission statement to guide the progress of Red Deer’s central business
district to provide a healthy atmosphere of business development and social and
cultural improvements.

There are over 450 businesses located within this zone whose boundaries are shown
on the attached map. The BRZ is governed by the Downtown Business Association
Board of Directors who manage within the regulations set by Provincial legislation
and empowered by Municipal law.

2002 BRZ Budget

Each year the Downtowr Business Association must present a budget for the BRZ to
City Council for approval. This budget, if approved, will be used as the basis for the
BRZ tax that members pay. Before Council considers this budget we want to give
you, as a member of the Association, an opportunity to provide Council with your
comments about this budget. The 2002 Downtown Business Association budget is
attached for your review.
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Comments can be communicated to Council by:

1. Sending a letter to: Red Deer City Council
c/o City Clerk
Box 5008, Red Deer, AB T4N 3T4
Deadline: Monday, December 10, 2001

2. Emailing Council at: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

...Page 2

4914 - 48 Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http:/www.city.red-deer.ab.ca




Downtown Business Association — 2002 Budget 7
November 28, 2001
Page 2

3. Attending and speaking at the Public Hearing scheduled for Monday,
December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, 2nd floor, City Hall
(access through west, Park side, City Hall doors). Letters can also be
submitted at the Public Hearing.

Comments submitted will be placed on the open agenda of Council and will be
available to the public.

For additional information, or should you have questions, please contact:
Regarding the Budget:

» Downtown Business Association at (403) 340-8696 or email at
rd.downtown@home.com

Regarding the Council Meeting;:

» City Clerk at (403) 342-8132 or email at cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

Sincerely,

ez

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

KX /chk
/attach.

C Director of Corporate Services
City Assessor
Tax Collector



Red Deer

Downtown

Business Association

November 6, 2001

City Council

City of Red Deer

4914 — 48™ Avenue

Red Deer, Alberta T4N 3T4

Re: Red Deer Downtown Business Association

2002 Budget

Dear Mayor and Council,

The Downtown Business Association is pleased to submit to you the 2002 Budget that
was approved by the Board of Directors at their regular meeting on November 6, 2001 .

The attached budget maintains the 2002 BRZ assessment at the same level as the 2001
assessment.

A Strategic Plan for the Association was completed and approved by the Board in May
2001. A three-year financial plan was developed by our Executive Director and used
during consideration of our 2002 budget.

We would appreciate Council consideration and approval of our 2002 budget and would

be pleased to answer any questions you may have concerning the budget.

Thank you for your consideration.

im DeZué er. President

Red Deer Downtown Business Association

#9, 4921-49 Street « Red Deer, Alberta » T4N1V2
Phone (403) 340-8696 « Fax (403) 340-8699 « E-mail rd.downtown@home.com « www.downtown.red-deer.ab.ca




Red Deer

Dovvntovvn

Business Association

2002 Budget

November 2001
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
2002 Budget

Revenue 2002 2001 2000
Budget | Budget | Budget

BRZ Levy $134,000 $134,000 | $133,620
Alberta Main Street $125,000 |$ 40,000

Program

Environmental Contract $ 43,500 $ 43,500 | $ 43,500
Banner Program $ 5700 |$ 5,700 | $ 5,700
Kiosk Rental $ 2,000 |$ 4,500

Transfer from revenues $ 20,000 $ 9,717

Total Revenue $330,200 | $237,417 | $187,320

Revenue notes:

b

. BRZ Tax levy remaining the same as 2001.

Alberta Main Street Program revenue based on July approval of Red Deer Project

Kiosk Rental adjusted to reflect realistic income. Currently only three spaces are
not rented.

Transfer of $9,187 from reserves proposed to cover annual principal and interest
on Ghost Project loan payment of $9,187 due every year until 2009 (8 years).

Transfer of $10,813 from reserves proposed to cover revenue shortfall.

Reserve fund balance as of Dec. 31, 2000 $59.879
Transfer to operating budget in 2001 (Ghost loan) $ 9.717

$50,162
Transfer to operating budget in 2001 (Ghost Loan) $20.000
It is expected that we will have an operating $30,162

Surplus of between $5,000 - $8,000 at the end of 2001.
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
2002 Budget

Expenditures 2002 2001 2000
Budget Budget Budget

Alberta Main Street Program $134,840 $ 49,840

(see attached schedule)

Environmental Contract $ 43,500 $ 43,500 $ 43,500

(see attached schedule)

Banner Program $ 5,700 $ 5,700 $ 5,700

Administration $102,790 $ 96,070 $107,370

(see attached schedule)

Publicity & Advertising $ 6,500 $ 5.850 $ 5,500

Events Promotion $ 11,500 $ 10,500 $ 9,500

Public Relations / Marketing $ 14,000 $ 13,650 $ 15,750

Ghost Projects $ 11,212 $ 12,307

(sce attached Schedule)

Total Expenditures $330,042 | $237,417 | $187,320

Surplus / <deficit> $158

Expenditure Notes:

1. Alberta Main Street Program expenditures based on July approval of Red Deer Project
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
2002 Budget

Red Deer Main Street Project

2001 2002 2000
Budget Budget Budget
i

Building Rehabilitation Architect $20,000

Construction $16,000

Building Rehab. $39,000

Discretionary Funds $10,000

Operations — Office, Advertising $ 9,840 $ 9,840

Coordinator Salary $40,000 $40,000

Total $134,840 $49,840




13

Red Deer Downtown Business Association
2002 Budget

Environmental Contract:

2002 2001 2000
Budget Budget Budget

LSala.ries & Benefits $ 25,000 $23,300 $22,500
' Vehicle Operation $ 4,575 |$ 5275 $11,404
Administration $ 3,600 [$ 6,000 $ 4,500
Supplies $ 4,565 |$ 5,565 $ 2,250
G.S.T. $ 3360 |$ 3,360 $ 2,846
New Initiatives $ 2,400

Total $43,500 $43,500 $43,500

Note:

1. Exploring possibility of establishing a two-person student team during summer to
provide enhanced maintenance in downtown area.
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association

2002 Budget
Administration:

2002 2001 2000

Budget Budget Budget
Bank Charges $ 100 $ 100 $ 100
Board meetings $ 1,200 $ 1,600 $ 1,600
Bookkeeper Fees $ 2,000 $ 1,500 $ 1,500
BRZ Assessment Fee $ 5,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,000
Conferences $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 1,950
Computer Supplies $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Dues & Fees $750 $ 750 $ 500
Executive Director — $ 1,500 $ 2,100 $ 1,800
Vehicle Expenses
Insurance — Property & $ 1,640 $ 1,700 $ 1,700
Liability
Directors Liability $ 1,100 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
Internet — Web site $ 1,000 $ 900 $ 900
Janitorial $ 500 $ 450
Office Supplies $ 4,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,700
Professional Fees $ 1,800 $ 1,800 $ 1,700
Rent $ 9,300 $ 8,700 $ 7,500
Salaries & Benefits $67,900 $63,420 $77.220
Telephone $ 3,000 $ 2,400 $ 1,650
Total $102,790 $96,070 $107,370

Note:

1. Computer Supplies included in office supplies in 2002 budget
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association

2002 Budget
Ghost Collection
2002 2001 2000
Budget Budget Budget
!
| Loan payment $9,187 $9,717
Insurance $1,275 $ 840
Moving Storey Plaques $1,000
Annual Maintenance Program | $ 750 $ 750
Total $11,212 $12,307
NOTE:
1. No funds have been budgeted for any expenses related to additional Ghost

Project.
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Comments:

We concur with the recommendations of the City Clerk.

“G. D. Surkan”
Mayor

“N. Van Wyk”
City Manager



. Box 5008
Red Deer, Alberta
T4N 314

City of Red Deer

" Office of the City Clerk , Mo 75,,1.

4’6/‘/ LETTEH S
ST dUT .

November 28, 2001 7 Tem ;c;,%

ABACUS DATAGRAPHICS LTD.
300 4814 50 ST
RED DEER AB T4N 1X4

Dear Sir/Madam:

Re:  Downtown Business Association - 2002 Budget
Request for Your Comments

History

In 1984 the Downtown Business Community formed a Business Revitalization Zone (BRZ)
with a mission statement to guide the progress of Red Deer's central business district to
provide a healthy atmosphere of business development and social and cultural
improvements.

There are over 450 businessas located within this zone whose boundaries are shown on the
attached map. The BRZ is governed by the Downtown Business Association Board of
Directors who manage within the regulations set by ProvnnCIal legislation and empowered by
Municipal law.

2002 BRZ Budget

Each year the Downtown Business Association must present a budget for the BRZ to City
Council for approval. This budget, if approved, will be used as the basis for the BRZ tax that
members pay. Before Council considers this budget, we want to give you as a member of
the Association an opportunity to provide Council with your comments about this budget
The 2002 Downtown Business Association budget is attached for your review.

Comments can be communicated to Council by:

1. Sending a letter to: Red Deer City Council
c/o City Clerk ,
, - Box 5008, Red Deer, AB -'T4N 3T4
Deadline: Monday, December 10, 2001

2. Emailing Council at: citvclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

4914 - 48th Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4 )
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http://www.city.red-deer.ab.ca




Christine Kenzie

From: Kelly Kloss

Sent: Friday, November 30, 2001 11:45 AM
To: Christine Kenzie; Norm Ford
Subject: FW: Change of Address

For your files.

From: Connections In Adoption Ltd.
Sent: November 30, 2001 9:56 AM
To: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

Cc: rd.downiown@home.com
Subject: Change of Address

Today received the Downtown Business Association 2002 Budget - Request for Comments Letter.

Please be advised all future correspondence mailed to Roxanne Whitford-Numan, NuWay Consulting Services
Inc. should be mailed to our new address:

#501, 4808 Ross Street

Red Deer, AB T4N 1X5.

Thank you

Page 1
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November 30, 2001

Dear Sir/Madam:

Re:  Downtown Business Association — 2002 Budget
Request for Your Comments

History

In 1984 the Downtown Business Community formed a Business Revitalization Zone
(BRZ) with a mission statement to guide the progress of Red Deer’s central business
district to provide a healthy atmosphere of business development and social and
cultural improvements.
e

There arg,\o450 businesses located within this zone whose boundaries are shown on
the attached map. The BRZ is governed by the Downtown Business Association
Board of Directors who manage within the regulations set by Provincial legislation
and empowered by Municipal law.

2002 BRZ Budget

Each year the Downtown Business Association must present a budget for the BRZ to
City Council for approval. This budget, if approved, will be used as the basis for the
BRZ tax that members pay. Before Council considers this budget we want to give
you, as a member of the Association, an opportunity to provide Council with your
comments about this budget. The 2002 Downtown Business Association budget is

attached for your review.
Comments can be communicated to Council by:

1. Sending a letter to: Red Deer City Council
' c/o City Clerk
Box 5008, Red Deer, AB T4N 3T4
Deadline: Monday, December 10, 2001
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Downtown Business Association — 2002 Budget
November 30, 2001
Page 2

2. Emailing Council at: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

3. Attending and speaking at the Public Hearing scheduled for Monday,
December 17, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, 2nd floor, City Hall
(access through west, Park side, City Hall doors). Letters can also be
submitted at the Public Hearing.

Comments submitted will be placed on the open agenda of Council and will be
available to the public.

For additional information, or should you have questions, please contact:
Regarding the Budget:

> Downtown Business Association at (403) 340-8696 or email at
rd.downtown®home.com

Regarding the Council Meeting;:

» City Clerk at (403) 342-8132 or email at cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

Sincerely,

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

KK /chk
/attach.

C Director of Corporate Services
City Assessor
Tax Collector






Office of the City Clerk
January 5, 2001

To All Businesses in the BRZ

Dear Sir/Madam:

Re: (a) Downtown Business Association - 2001 Budget
(b) City of Red Deer - Business Tax Assessment Updated for Business

Revitalization Zone

Downtown Business Association - 2001 Budget

The Downtown Business Association’s Board of Directors has prepared the attached 2001
Business Revitalization Zore budget for review and approval by City Council. Before Council
considers this budget we want to give you, as a member of the Association, an opportunity to
provide Council with your comments regarding this budget. Comments can be communicated

to Council by:

1. Sending a letter to:  Red Deer City Council
c/o City Clerk
Box 5008, Red Deer, AB T4N 3T4
Deadline: Monday January 22, 2001

2. Emailing Council at: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca

3. Attending and speaking at the Public Hearing scheduled for Monday, January 29,
2001 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, 2™ floor, City Hall (access through west, Park

side, City Hall doors).

Comments submitted will be placed on the open agenda of Council and will be available to the
public.

For additional information, or should you have questions, please contact the:

» Downtown Business Association at (403) 340-8696 for budget inquiries;
» City Clerk at (403) 342-8132 - regarding the Council meeting.

4914 - 48% Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http//www city red-deer.ab.ca
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January 5, 2001
Page 2

City of Red Deer:

Business Tax Assessment Updated for Business Revitalization Zone

The Business Tax Assessment is used as a basis to calculate the Business Revitalization Zone
(BRZ) tax for businesses in downtown Red Deer. This tax is levied to business owners who
may or may not be the property owner with the revenue generated being forwarded to the
Downtown Business Association annually to fund their budget. Please see the attached 2001

Budget.

In accordance with provincial legislation, The City must now annually update assessments
based on market value which in the case of business assessment will be calculated on the net
annual rental value of the premises. The last update of these values was in 1995 and was
based on gross annual rental value.

What does this mean to you as a business owner?

The amount of money that The City collects for the Downtown Business Association’s 2001
budget will not increase, however a change will result in the amount of business tax levied to a
number of accounts. The change will affect approximately 56% of the accounts (256 of 460
accounts). There will be no change to the taxes payable to 44% of the accounts (204 of 460
accounts). Generally, the businesses in the older properties will experience a decrease in BRZ
taxes, and the businesses in the newer properties will experience an increase in BRZ taxes,
because net rents in older properties are less than net rents in newer properties.

The following charts provide a summary of the changes.

# of Accounts % Change

99 21.5% Decrease from 1% - 20%

88 19.1% Decrease from 21% - 100%

204 44.3% No Change
35 7.6% Increase from 1% - 20%
34 7.4% Increase from 21% - 100%
Distribution of Accounts by Tax Dollar Change
Dollar Change # of Percent of
Accounts Accounts
Over $500 decrease 3 0.7
$300 to $500 decrease 6 1.3
$201 to $300 decrease 7 1.5
$101 to $200 decrease 31 6.7
$51 to $100 decrease 38 8.3
$26 to $50 decrease 43 9.3
$0 to $25 decrease 59 12.9
No change 204 44.3
30 to $25 increase 23 5.0
$26 to $50 increase 16 3.5
$51 to $100 increase 16 3.5
$101 to $200 increase 6 1.3
$201 to $500 increase 7 1.5
Over $1000 increase 1 0.2
Total 460 100.0%
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For those accounts that will experience a larger increase, the Assessment Department will be
contacting you to review your account. If you have any questions about your business
assessment, please call the Assessment Department at 342-8119.

City Council will also be reviewing the update of the business tax assessment at their meeting
of Monday, January 29, 2001 at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, 2™ floor City Hall. For your
convenience, should you wish to address Council on the method of valuing business
assessment, please refer to one of the options noted above.

Sincerely,

g%

Kéelly Kloss |
City Clerk

KK/clr
attchs.

c Director of Corporate Services
City Assessor
Tax Collector



Business Association

December 22, 2000

Mayor Surkan and
City Councillors
City of Red Deer

Re: Red Deer Downtown Business Association
2001 Budget

Dear Mayor and Council;

The Downtown Business Association is pleased to submit to you the 2001 Budget that
has been approved by the Board of Directors for the Association.

We would like to announce that the 2001 budget requires no changes and will not warrant
a BRZ tax increase. ’

Our Mission Statement of the Association is:
To provide an accountable and resourceful downtown business association which
responds to the needs of our members through promotion, communication, innovation,

and partnerships.

In conclusion the Downtown Business Association would be pleased to answer any
questions you may have concerning this budget. You may contact us by phone at
340-8696 or by fax at 340-8699.

Thank you for your attention.

Jim DeZutter, Chairman
Red Deer Downtown Business Associaiton



Red Deer Downtown Business Association

2001 Proposed Budget

2001 Budget 2000 Budget

7

1999 Budget

REVENUE
BRZ levy 134,000 133,620 112,000
Alberta Main Street Programme 40,000
Litter contract (see attached schedule) 43,500 43,500 43,500
Street decoration (banners) 5,700 5,700 5,700
Project revenue (information Kiosks rentats) 4,500 4,500 4,500
TOTAL BUDGETED REVENUE $227,700 $187,320 $165,700
EXPENDITURES
Administration
Bank charges 100 100 100
Board meetings 1,600 1,600 1,600
Bookkeeping fees 1,500 1,500 3,600
Computer supplies 1,000 1,000 1,000
Conferences 2,000 1,950 1,700
Dues & fees 750 500 300
Insurance, directors liability 1,100 1,100 900
Insurance, property & liability 1,700 1,700 1,300
Internet access & web site 900 900
Janitorial 500 450 900
Manager vehicle expense 2,100 1,800 1,750
Office supplies 2,500 2,700 2,700
Professional fees 1,800 1,700 1,500
Rent 8,700 7,500 7,500
Salaries & benefits 63,420 77,220 39,450
Telephone 2,400 1,650 1,400
Total administation expenses $92,070 $103,370 $65,700
BRZ assessment fee $4,000 $4,000
Project Costs
Alberta Main Street Programme (see attached sched) 49,840
Litter contract (see attached schedule) 43,500 43,500 43,500
Street decoration (banners) 5,700 5,700 5,700
Festival promotions (Christmas parade, First Night, etc.) 9,000 8,000 6,000
Ghost collection 2,590 38,000
Promotions 1,500 1,500
Public relations (see attached schedule) 13,650 15,750 4,400
Publicity (see attached schedule) 5,850 5,500 2,400
Total project costs $131,630 $79,950 $100,000
TOTAL BUDGETED EXPENDITURES $227,700 $187,320 $165,700




Red Deer Downtown Business Association

2001 Proposed Budget

ALBERTA MAIN STREET PROGRAMME

Advertising

Main Street coordinator salary

Main Street coordinator employee benefits
Office expenses

Public relations

Photograhy

Travel expenses

TOTAL ALBERTA MAIN STREET EXPENSES

LITTER CONTRACT BUDGET
(Environmental Maintenance Contract)

REVENUE
City of Red Deer Litter Contract (includes GST)

EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Vehicle (insurance, maintenance and repair)
Administration

Supplies (clean, repair & replace litter containers)
GST (7% due and payable)

TOTAL LITTER CONTRACT EXPENSES

PUBLIC RELATIONS EXPENSES

Newsletter

Brochure printing

Networking - minimum two events
Annual general meeting (Vegas Night)
Stationary printing

Business reward program

TOTAL PUBLIC RELATIONS EXPENSES

PUBLICITY

City maps

Hotel guest room directory

Signage upgrading

Print advertising

Visitor & Convention Bureau Visitor Guide

TOTAL PUBLICITY EXPENSES

2001 Budget 2000 Budget 1999 Budget
1,800
40,000
2,640
3,200
700
500
1,000
$49,840
$43,500 $43,500 $43,500
23,300 22,500 22500
5,275 9,080 11404
6,000 6,000 4500
5,565 2,560 2250
3,360 3,360 2846
$43,500 $43,500 $43,500
2,400 2,400 2,400
1,500 3,600
2,500 2,500 2,000
1,500 1,500
750 750
5,000 5,000
$13,650 $15,750 $4,400
600 600
450
1,500 1,700
1,605 1,605 2,400
1,695 1,595
$5,850 $5,500 $2,400
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DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

C. Neil Downey, C.A. ndowney@dsrca.com 100, 4708 - 50 Avenue
Kenneth L. Swainson B. Comm., C. A kswainson@dsrca.com Red Deer, Alberta TAN 4A1
Jerome J. Roth B. Mgt., C.A.  jroth@dsrca.com Phone (403) 343-7707

Fax (403) 343-7722
Website: www.dsrca.com

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of:
Red Deer Downtown Business Association

We have audited the balance sheet of the Red Deer Downtown Business Association as
at December 31, 2000 and the statements of operating fund, cultural enhancement
projects fund, contingency fund and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Association's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordaince with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association as at December 31, 2000 and the resuits of its

operations and the changes in its cash position for the year then ended in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

hartered Accountants
Red Deer, Alberta

February 16, 2001

Partnership of Professional Corporations
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Balance Sheet

As at December 31, 2000

Assets
Cultural
Operating Projects  Contingency 2000 1999
Fund Fund Fund Total Total
Current assets:
Cash $ 36607 $ 21682 $ 10,000 $ 68,289 $ 58,006
Amounts receivable 24,890 - - 24,890 8,907
interfund receivable (Note 8) 19,804 - - 19,804 -
Prepaid expenses 1,697 - - 1,697 3473
82,998 21,682 10,000 114,680 70,386
Capital assets: (Notes 2 and 3) 12,739 - - 12,739 15,339
Cultural enhancement assets:
(Note 4) - _412.814 - 412,814 400.814
$ 95737 $434496 $ 10,000 3$540,233 $486,539
Liabilities and Association's Equity
Current liabilities:
Amounts payable and accruals $ 19,786 $ 3,315 $ - % 23101 $ 12,408
Note payable (Note ) - - - - -
Interfund payable (Note 8) - 19,804 - 19,804 -
Deferred revenue (Note 5) 13,333 - - 13,333 2,056
Current portion of long-term debt - (5,163) - (5.163) -
33.119 17.956 - 51.075 14.464
Long-term debt (Note 6) - 64,393 - 64,393 85,000
Association's equity:
Unrestricted 49,879 1,878 10,000 61,757 55,922
Invested in Capital assets 12,739 _ 350,269 - 363.008 331,153
62.618 _ 352,147 10.000 424 765 387.075
$ 95737 $434496 $ 10000 $540233 $486,539
Approved by the Board:
Director
Director

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Statement of Operating Fund
For the year ended December 31, 2000

Actual Budget Actual
2000 2000 1999
Revenue:
Business Revitalization Zone tax $140,580 $133620 $ 112,000
City fee - Environmental maintenance: (Schedule A) 8,156 - 12,838
City grant - Christmas decorations 5,700 5,700 6,547
Miscellaneous project income 3,010 4,500 4,094
Interest income 211 - 688
Gain on sale of capital assets 2,804 - 1,834
160,461 143,820 138,001
Expenses:
Amortization 7,961 - 5,068
Computer and general office 4,475 6,200 6,208
Conferences, dues and meetings 7,792 4,050 2,512
Goods and services tax - - 4,584
Insurance 2,686 2,800 2,929
Occupancy costs 8,500 7,950 7,925
Professional fees 1,614 1,700 1,912
Salaries and benefits 61,331 79,020 53,409
Telephone 1,761 1,650 1,432
BRZ Assessment 4,000 4.000 -
100.120 107,370 85,979
Project Expenses:
Alberta Main Street (Schedule B) 505 - -
Festival Promotions 9,943 21,450 8,997
Advertising and public relations 17.354 15,000 22,199
27.802 36.450 31,196
Excess revenue over expenses 32,539 - 20,826
Equity balances, beginning 30.480 30,480 26,580
63,019 30,480 47,406
Transfer to Cultural Projects Fund (Note 8) (18,401) - (16,926)
Transfer from Contingency Fund (Note 8) 18,000 - -
Equity balances, ending $ 62618 $ 30480 $_30480

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Statement of Cultural Projects Fund
For the year ended December 31, 2000

2000 1999
Revenue:
Community contributions : $ 12,162 $ 49.360
Expenses:
Office 2,135 440
Goods and services tax - 3,501
Interest, long-term 4,876 4,650
7.011 8.591
Excess of revenue over expenses 5,151 40,769
Equity balances, beginning 328,595 270,900
Transfer from Operating Fund (Note 8) 18.401 16,926
Equity balances, ending $ 352,147 $ 328,595

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Statement of Contingency Fund
For the year ended December 31, 2000

2000 1999

Equity balances, beginning $ 28,000 $ 28,000
Transfer to operating Fund (Note 8) (18.000) -
Equity balances, ending $ 10000 $ 28000

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2000

Cultural
Operating Projects Contingency 2000 1999
Fund Fund Fund Total Total
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Cash receipts $150,740 $ 12,162 3 - $162,902 $209,839
Interest income received 210 - - 210 688
Cash payments to
suppliers and employees (101.018) (2,135) - (103.153) _ (139,097)
49,932 10.027 - 59,959 71.430
Investment activities:
Purchase of capital assets (5,480) - - (5,480) (5,395)
Proceeds on disposal 2,804 - - 2,804 3,200
Purchase of Cultural
enhancement assets - (12.000) - (12.000) (97.489)
(2.676) __(12.000) - (14.676) _ (99.684)
Financing activities:
Fund transfers (Note 8) (401) 18,401 (18,000) - -
Interfund account (Note 8) (19,803) 19,803 - - -
Loan advance - - - - 45,000
Loan repayment - (35.000) - (35,000) -
(20.204) 3204 __(18.000) (35.000) 45,000
Increase (decrease) in cash 27,052 1,231 (18,000) 10,283 16,746
Cash, beginning 9,555 20,451 28,000 58.006 41,260
Cash, ending $ 36607 $ 21682 $ 10000 $ 68289 $ 58,006

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Schedule A
Red Deer Downtown Business Association

Environmental Maintenance
For the year ended December 31, 2000

Actual Budget Actual
2000 2000 1999
Revenue:
City of Red Deer $ 40726 $ 40140 $ 41.089
Expenses:
Administration 6,000 6,000 -
Amortization 117 - 168
Salaries and benefits 22,440 22,500 21,049
Supplies 2,157 2,560 7,034
Vehicle 1.856 9.080 -
32,570 40,140 28.251
Excess revenue over expenses $ 8156 3 - $ 12,838

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Schedule B

Red Deer Downtown Business Association

Alberta Main Street Program

For the year ended December 31, 2000

Revenue: (Note 5)
City of Red Deer
Province of Alberta

Expenses:
Salary and benefits
Office

Excess revenue over expenses

$ 3,334

3,333

___b6.667

7,128
44
772

505

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2000

1. Entity:

The Association is a non-profit non-taxable organization established by municipal bylaws of the
City of Red Deer to enhance and support the business opportunities in the downtown area. The
Association has an Operating Fund which is responsible for the general functions of the
Association, a Contingency Fund for future obligations, and a Cultural Projects Fund which is
responsible for the cultural enhancement of the downtown area. The main project of the Cultural
Projects Fund has been the the "Ghosts of Red Deer". The Association's equity is not available
for distribution to the members. In the event of dissolution, the Board shall cease to exist and its
undertaking, assets and liabilities shall be assumed by the City of Red Deer.

2. Significant accounting policies:

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided annually applying the following
rates and methods over the estimated life of the assets.

Computer software 100% Straight-line
Computer equipment 30% Straight-line
Furniture and equipment 20% Straight-line
Leasehold improvements 20% Straight-line
Kiosks 20% Straight-line
Vehicles 30% Declining balance
Signs 20% Straight-line
Storage shed 10% Straight-line
Trailer 20% Straight-line

Comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current year's financial statement
presentation.

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2000

3. Capital assets:

2000 1999
Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Value
Computer software $ 540 $ 540 $ - $ -
Computer equipment 14,471 11,408 3,063 1,924
Furniture and equipment 11,774 8,978 2,796 3,595
Leasehold improvements 10,749 5,610 5,239 6,933
Kiosks - 19,384 19,384 - -
Vehicles 9,700 9,427 273 391
Signs 11,779 11,031 748 1,122
Storage shed 1,550 930 620 775
Trailer 750 750 - 599

$ 80697 $ 67958 $ 12,739 $ 15339

4. Cultural enhancement assets:

2000 1999
Rev. Leonard Gaetz bronze $ 30,957 $ 30,957
Choices bronze 32,920 32,920
Galbraith bronze 35,574 35,574
Sound the Alarm bronze 280,248 280,248
Francis the Pig bronze 21,115 21,115
Reaching Out bronze 12,000 -

$ 412 814 $ 400814

Cultural enhancement assets are carried at cost and are expected to retain their value over time
and therefore are not amortized.

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2000

5. Deferred revenue:

The City of Red Deer and the Province of Alberta have advanced funds for a six month salary
position to co-ordinate The Alberta Main Street Program. As of the fiscal year end, one third of
the salaried position has ended and therefore two thirds of the funding has been recorded as
deferred revenue.

Province of Alberta receipts $ 10,000
City of Red Deer receipts 10,000
20,000
Less: Deferred revenue (13,333)
Current year revenue $ 6667

6. Long-term debt:

2000 1999
Loan repayable to the City of Red Deer in annual
installments of $9,187 including interest at 7.375%
per annum, due March 1, 2009. $59,230 $ 85,000
Less portion due within one year 5.163 -

54.067 85,000

Long-term debt is estimated to be repaid as follows:

2002 $ 5,199
2003 5,683
2004 5,994
2005 6,436
2006 and thereafter 30,855

$ 54,067

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2000

7. Operating lease:

The Association is committed to total minimum rentals in the amount of $625 per month under an
operating lease for office space.

8. Interfund transfers and balances:

During the year the Operating Fund transferred $38,204 to the Cultural Projects Fund of which
$35,000 was used to partially repay the loan to the City of Red Deer and $3,204 to pay general
operating expenses. As of the year-end, the Cultural Projects Fund had a non-interest bearing
note payable to the Operating Fund of $19,803. The Contingency Fund transferred $18,000 to the
Operating Fund to offset the costs of the transfers to the Cultural Projects Fund.

DOWNEY SWAINSON ROTH, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Sunworks Home and Garden Inc.
4924 Ross Street
Red Deer, Alberta

December 10, 2001 Date. __”,AQ&Q ’Z/y
Red Deer City Council

c/o City Clerk

Box 5008

Red Deer, Alberta

T4N 3T4

Dear Council,

Thank you for sending me a copy of the BRZ budget. My initial reaction was one of displeasure upon
seeing that there is again no increase in the budget — and yes I do realize that a budget increase would
mean that our taxes would increase.

The Downtown Business Association does some very valuable work for the businesses in the downtown
core and indeed for the citizens of Red Deer. As the number of businesses grow, the population of Red
Deer grows, and as number of visitors to the downtown increases, the DBA is called upon to do more.

It is impractical and unhealthy to expect that the budget should not grow as these other factors do. With
this growth we, as business people and as visitors to the downtown, have a greater need for increased
funding of the DBA in order to ensure high quality service.

More money needs to be put into everything from sidewalk and power grid maintenance to better
policing. The list is nearly endless. It is very disturbing that we have problems with the sidewalk power
since as merchants have been paying a ‘frontage charge’ for the decorative lighting and paving stone
sidewalks since 1992 and will continue to pay until 2011. It seems fair that at least these items should
be maintained. It was embarrassing to see the cover page of the Red Deer Advocate reporting that
downtown Sylvan Lake was fully lit, when the DBA owns lights to do the same but the power grid is in
bad repair.

I would implore the council to continue to support the DBA with this budget, but know that many
members of the DBA are expecting an increase in service in the near future however that can be
accomplished.

Sincerely,

I

P

Revs NN
Paul Harris
Sunworks Home arid Garden Inc.

cc: Ray Congdon, Executive Director Red Deer Downtown Business Association
cc: City Councillors



Office of the City Clerk

December 18, 2001

Box 5008
Red Deer, Alberta
T4N 3T4
Mr. R. Congdon, Executive Director
Red Deer Downtown Business Association
#9, 4921 — 49 Street

Red Deer, AB T4N 1V2
Dear Ray:
Re:  Red Deer Downtown Business Association 2002 Budget
At the City of Red Deer’s Council Meeting held Monday, December 17, 2001 Council
approved the Downtown Business Association 2002 Budget by the following
resolution:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer hereby approves

the Red Deer Downtown Business Association Budget for 2002

as presented to Council on December 17, 2001.

Please call if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Z

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

S
=
S
=
T
O
S

KK/chk

C Director of Corporate Services
City Assessor
Tax Collector

4914 - 48t Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4 )
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http:/www.city.red-deer.ab.ca




ftem No. 2

DATE:
TO:
FROM:

RE:

17

December 11, 2001
City Council
City Clerk

Red Deer Downtown Business Association
Board of Director Appointment

Mr. Jim Dezutter has submitted his resignation from the Board of Directors of the
Downtown Business Association, to be effective December 31, 2001. A copy of his
resignation is attached.

As in the past names have been submitted in confidence to Council.

Recommendation

That Council appoint a Director of the Downtown Business Association to fill the
unexpired term of Jim DeZutter to December, 2002.

/ ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ / ) ) ;’
4;//4/&;;%
7 /7
Kelly Kloss
City Clerk
KK/chk
/attach. -

Docs No. 193697
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5121 47 Street, Red Deer, AB T4N 1R8 PH: (403) 347-1000 FAX: (403) 341-4585

September 26, 2001

Downtown Business Association,

With much thought and consideration, I feel it is time to resign from the Downtown Business
Association. I have enjoyed my time on the board and working with the Association staff.

December 31, 2001 will be my last day with the board.

Thank you,

A DA

Jim DeZutter

I



Office of the City Clerk F , LE

December 18, 2001

Box 5068
Red Deer, Alberta
T4N 314
Mr. R. Congdon, Executive Director
Red Deer Downtown Business Association
#9, 4921 - 49 Street

Red Deer, AB T4N 1V2
Dear Ray:
Re:  Downtown Business Association Board of Director Appointment
At the City of Red Deer’s Council meeting held Monday, December 17, 2001, Council
passed the following resolution regarding the appointment to the Downtown
Business Association Board of Directors:

Resolved that Council of the City of Red Deer hereby appoints

the following as Director of the Downtown Business Association

to fill the unexpired term of Jim DeZutter to December, 2002.

Sharon Fisher Term to Expire December, 2002

Please call if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

7

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

S
=
&
k)
2
S
S

KK/chk
C Sharon Fisher

4914 - 48 Avenue, Red Deer, AB Canada T4N 3T4 )
Tel: (403) 342-8132 Fax: (403) 346-6195 E-mail: cityclerk@city.red-deer.ab.ca Web: http:/www.city.red-deer.ab.ca -
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ltem No. 3
SP— 6.622
DATE: December 10, 2001
TO: Kelly Kloss, City Clerk
FROM: Barbara Jeffrey, Manager
Social Planning Department
RE: International Year of the Volunteer: Voluntarism in Red Deer

During budget deliberations for 2001 with City Council, former Councillor Bill Hull mentioned
that 2001 was the International Year of the Volunteer and asked that Council receive some
information about the status of volunteering in Red Deer during this year.

Linda Carritt of the Social Planning Department met with 19 volunteer managers in the late
summer and early fall of 2001 to establish what they felt were the trends, opportunities and
challenges for volunteers and the managers and organizations depending on volunteers in
Red Deer. The interviews included representatives from business, church, health, sports,
culture and the social services fields. Linda presented the results of the interviews to a
meeting of volunteer managers in November to validate the report and discuss future
directions. The report was also presented to the Board of Red Deer and District Family and
Community Services at the December 2001 meeting.

The Social Planning Department and the Community Information and Referral Society
(which provides a matching service for volunteers and the agencies which need the
volunteers and also coordinates the Volunteer Managers’ Network) will use information in
the report when planning for future support to volunteers in Red Deer.

Linda will be available to present a short summary of the report and answer any questions
from Council.

Linda uses a quote from the Canadian Code for Volunteer Involvement 2000, to begin her
report: Volunteering is the most fundamental act of citizenship and philanthropy in our
society. It is offering time, energy and skills of one’s own free will. We need to preserve the
very valuable resource of volunteerism in Red Deer and be reminded that volunteers need
to be supported as they carry out their acts of citizenship and philanthropy.
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INTERNATIONAL YEAR OF THE VOLUNTEER
CITY OF RED DEER — SOCIAL PLANNING DEPARTMENT

THE STATE OF VOLUNTEERISM

December 4, 2001
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State of Volunteerism

Volunteering

“...is the most fundamental act of citizenship and philanthropy in our
society. It is offering time, energy and skills of one’s own free will.

(Canadian Code for Volunteer Involvement, 2000)

Acknowledgments

This project would not have been possible without the invaluable input of the following
managers of volunteers representing eighteen agencies:

Eryn Neilson, Golden Circle

Joyce Neiman, Canadian Mental Health Association

Lee Anne Shinski, Canadian Red Cross

Linda Tews, Central Alberta Women’s Outreach

Elzbieta Sawicka, Central Alberta Refugee Effort

Shirley Goodwin and Brenda Farwell, Red Deer Regional Hospital — Volunteer
Resources

Faye Hughes, Lifeline

Roy Bedford, Scouts Canada

Karen Schurman, Youth and Volunteer Centre

Ed Morris, City Recreation Department

Kerry Dawson, City Arts and Culture Department

Donna Hately, Alberta Sports Hall of Fame

Judy Douglas, United Way of Central Alberta

Fred Lane, Balmoral Chapel

Vergil Schmidt, Deer Park Alliance Church

Shirley Brownell, Living Stones Church

Jan Fisher, Red Deer Chamber of Commerce

Dave Henderson, RCMP Victim Services

Thank you for making the time to discuss with me your volunteer programs. Your
dedication and pride in “what you do” was evident in the way you described your
programs, the challenges you face and the rewards inherent in your volunteer success
stories. | hope you continue to make a difference, not only to your agency’s cause, but
also to our community.
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INTERNATIONAL YEAR OF THE VOLUNTEER
CITY OF RED DEER — SOCIAL PLANNING DEPARTMENT

THE STATE OF VOLUNTEERISM - Executive Summary
Background

The United Nations General Assembly declared 2001 the International Year of the
Volunteer (IYV). City Council for Red Deer requested this descriptive report to recognize
and celebrate volunteerism within the City; and, to provide information on current trends
in volunteerism that may aid future planning.

Methodology

Broad background information was compiled following a literature review of Canadian
and provincial statistics and surveys. Descriptive data was collected from interviews
with managers of volunteers representing 18 agencies within the City of Red Deer.
These managers provided information reflective of just under 6000 volunteers that gave
an estimated 522,644 hours of service in the year 2000. If provincial statistics truly
reflect Red Deer volunteerism, this interviewed sample represents about 22% of the
total volunteer effort in Red Deer (estimated to be 26,640 volunteers in the year 2000).
The agencies interviewed represented a cross section of social agencies, health
agencies, youth groups, recreation programs, fundraising agencies, churches, business
and cultural groups. This study is not meant to be empirical or scientific, but hopefully
will provide a “flavor of volunteerism” within Red Deer to aid planning.

Key Findings

e Volunteerism is strong in Canada (26.7 % or 6.5 million in year 2000). There were
4.7 % fewer Canadians volunteering in 2000, as compared to 1997, but those
volunteering were giving 8.7 % more hours (162 vs. 149 hours per year).

e Albertans rate second in the country at 39%. Most volunteers give 140-190
hours/year.

e Most likely volunteer in Alberta and in Canada: female, aged 35-54, married,
employed part time, household income > $60,000/year, children older than 5 years,
with religious affiliation and post secondary education

¢ Red Deer Trends:
 volunteer roles include direct client service and support, fundraising and
organizing special events, board/committee work, administration and education
V' biggest volunteer motivator: to “give back”
j best recruitment method: personal contact (asking, word of mouth)
J

Py

use of traditional screening process by most agencies
recognition of volunteers on a regular basis, including extra for IYV

-
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V' managers of volunteers need to be more creative given difficulty recruiting, less
volunteer time commitment, volunteer burnout, more short term volunteers, and
more people donating money instead.

\ Increased depth of skill required to volunteer

v volunteers more discriminating, expecting rewards and challenges

Y volunteer management more sophisticated, requiring more skill, time and
reliance on outside resources

e Suggestions From Red Deer Managers of Volunteers
plan for short term volunteers
re-evaluate long term positions

offer flexibility in roles

use current volunteers to recruit

target recruitment

remove practical barriers

keep meeting time minimal

maintain reputation of organization
pursue partnerships

show you genuinely care for volunteers

22 L2 2 2 2L 2 L 2L _2_
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Report Use

o Presented report at Volunteer Managers’ Network meeting on November 21, 2001.
As a result of discussion, added practical suggestions to report and a committee
may be set up to produce practical guidelines (agency list, job board, volunteer
expectations) for mandated volunteer referral sources.

e Presented report to Community Services Division “Issues Meeting” on November 23,
2001. Clarified some definitions and some interest expressed in report being
presented to another City department and community agencies.

e [FCSS Board presentation on December 4, 2001.

o Tentative City Council presentation on December 17, 2001.

Linda Carritt
Community Worker
December 4, 2001
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1. INTRODUCTION

Volunteers are a vital human resource to every community and organization. They bring
a passion for the cause, a commitment to the purpose and they are motivated by their
choice of involvement. While they may not receive a wage for their service, volunteers
do receive multiple benefits from being linked to a community organization. Historically,
volunteer organizations arose because of concerns related to community needs and
issues. Their main role was in carrying out an advocacy-based role.

On November 20, 1997, in recognition of the work of volunteers, the United Nations
General Assembly declared 2001 the International Year of the Volunteer (IYV). City
Council for Red Deer requested this descriptive report to recognize and celebrate
volunteerism within the City; and, to provide information on current trends in
volunteerism that may aid future planning of community service.

1.1 SCOPE

Volunteerism has a major impact on the delivery of programs and services across many
sectors in the city of Red Deer. This report provides:

a summary of research conducted on volunteerism nationally and provincially
an overview of the state of volunteerism in the Red Deer community

e trends and issues that may have an impact on volunteerism in Red Deer in the
future

e suggestions for addressing those issues

1.2 PARAMETERS AND SOURCES OF INFORMATION

This report focuses on volunteerism (with agency involvement) within the geographical
area of the City of Red Deer. Broad background information was compiled following an
extensive literature review of Canadian and provincial statistics and surveys.

Descriptive data was collected from interviews with managers of volunteers
representing eighteen agencies within the City of Red Deer. These managers provided
information reflective of just under 6000 volunteers that gave an estimated 522, 644
hours of service in the year 2000. If provincial statistics are true reflections of Red Deer
volunteerism, this interviewed sample represents about one fifth or 20% of the total
volunteer effort in Red Deer. The agencies interviewed represented a cross section of:

e Social Agencies: Golden Circle, Canadian Mental Health Association, Canadian Red
Cross, Central Alberta Women’s Outreach, Central Alberta Refugee Effort, Victim
Services

Health Agencies: Red Deer Regional Hospital — Volunteer Resources, Lifeline
Youth groups: Scouts Canada, Youth and Volunteer Centre

Recreation: City Recreation Department, Sports Hall of Fame

Fundraising Agencies: United Way of Central Alberta
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e Churches: Balmoral Chapel, Deer Park Alliance, Living Stones Church
e Business: Chamber of Commerce
¢ Culture: City Culture Department, Sports Hall of Fame.

This report is limited by the resources available for the project and the “guesstimates” of
local managers of volunteers regarding their volunteer statistics. It is not meant to be
empirical, rather the intent is to provide an anecdotal report, showing the “flavor” of
volunteerism in Red Deer, and the trends to aid in future planning. This report focuses
only on volunteer time given - charitable giving was seen as beyond the scope of this
paper, and better dealt with on it's own. Where local statistics are cited, they were
drawn from the managers of volunteers themselves and their agency annual reports for
the year January 1 - December 31, 2000.

2. HISTORY OF VOLUNTEERISM
2.1 CANADA AND ALEERTA

Statistics Canada has completed three major surveys of Volunteerism titled the
“National Survey of Giving, Volunteering and Participating” (NSGVP). They define
volunteerism as “the offering of time, energy and skills of one’s own free will”. This does
not include persons in “work placements”, students in practicum, or high school work
experience students. Nor does it include the giving of money or material goods.
Compared to 1987, there was an increase in the total number of Canadians
volunteering in 1997, but a large decrease in the average hours given per year per
volunteer. In 2000, there were 1 million less volunteers than in the year 1997; however
the average number of hours given per volunteer has increased. The following two
charts compare these results and personal characteristics of volunteers from 1987, to
1997, to 2000.

Canadian Volunteers

1987 1997 2000
Average Number of
Hours Per Volunteer 191 149 162
Number of Canadians 5.3 7.5 6.5

Volunteering (million)
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Canadian Volunteers

1987 1997 2000

Personal Volunteer Volunteer Volunteer
Characteristic Rate (%) Rate (%) Rate (%)
Total 26.8 31.4 26.7
Age
15-24 18 33 29
25-34 27 28 24
35-44 36 37 30
45-54 31 35 30
55-64 27 30 28
65 & older 22 23 18
Sex
Male 24 29 25
Female 30 33 28
Marital status
Married or common-law 31 33 28
Single 19 31 26
Widowed 21 20 17
Separated or divorced 24 29 25
Education level
Less than high school 13 21 19
High school diploma 24 29 23
Some post secondary 31 36 33
Post secondary diploma 35 34 28
University degree 46 48 39
Labour force status
Employed 28 34 28

Full-time 27 32 27

Part-time 36 44 33
Unemployed 23 29 25
Not in labour force 35 27 24
Household income level
Less than $20,000 20 22 17
$20,000-$39,999 26 29 21
$40,000-$59,999 34 33 26
$60,000-$79,000 n/a 36 31
$80,000-$99,999 n/a 42 35
$100,000 or more n/a 45 39
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2.2 ALBERTA

Statistics Canada also reported volunteer statistics specific to Alberta. Alberta ranks
second in the country in percentage of people volunteering their time and energies for
worthwhile causes!

The gender gap is narrowing but education level and socioeconomic status continue to
play a role. Employed people volunteered more than those not employed. Not surprising
in the year 2000, there were still almost twice as many people who volunteered from the
higher income bracket.

In 1997 and in 2000, females between 35 and 54 years were the most likely to
volunteer, particularly if they were married, employed part time, had household incomes
greater than $60,000/year, had children older than 5 years and had a religious
affiliation. The most underrepresented group in the voluntary sector was single males
over 65 years of age with less than high school education, earning less than
$40,000/year and with no religious affiliation. Youth continued to be a growing segment
of the volunteer population at 46% in 2000.

As in Canadian statistics, most volunteer hours in Alberta came from a small
percentage of volunteers: the top 5 % of the voluntary sector gave greater than 537
hours of service in 1997. The top 5% of volunteer hours were more likely to be provided
by women in age group 45 - 64 years, with post secondary education, employed part
time or not in labour force, with household incomes between $20,000 and 39,999, with
children older than 18 years. The next 20 % of volunteer hours provided in 1997 were
more likely to be provided by married males over 45 years with university education, no
longer in labour force, incomes between $40,000 and $79,999, with children over the
age of 12 years.

The following chart compares Alberta results from 1997 to 2000.
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Alberta Volunteers

1997 2000
Personal Volunteer Total Volunteer Total
Characteristic Rate Hours Rate Hours
% 000,000 % 000,000

Total 40 128.3 39 127.0
Age
15-24 38 17.5 46 21.9
25-34 38 19.1 36 20.1
35-44 48 33.9 45 33.5
45-54 48 31.1 41 20.9
55-64 38 13.7 37 14.1
65 & older 25 n/a 21 16.5
Sex
Male 35 574 38 66.5
Female 46 70.9 40 60.5
Marital status
Married or common-law 44 91.0 39 75.5
Single 34 22.4 43 38.3
Widowed n/a n/a 23 5.6
Separated or divorced n/a n/a 38 7.6
Education level
Less than high school 29 20.7 24 19.4
High school diploma 37 19.3 35 22.4
Some post secondary 52 16.5 52 19.3
Post secondary diploma 41 40.3 40 37.9
University degree 55 315 56 28.1
Labour force status
Employed 42 90.3 40 82.4

Full-time 40 67.1 38 63.9

Part-time 49 23.2 48 18.5
Not in labour force 36 34.5 36 37.7
Household income level
Less than $20,000 31 16.6 20 14.6
$20,000-$39,999 34 30.3 30 25.3
$40,000-$59,999 39 30.6 37 28.5
$60,000-$79,000 48 24.3 43 28.8
$80,000 or more 59 26.5 57 29.8
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Alberta Volunteers

1997 2000

Average Number of Hours 146 127
Per Volunteer

These four types of organizations attracted 79% of volunteer hours:
cultural and recreation (27%)

health organizations (22%)

religious organizations (16%)

social services organizations (14%)

Fifty one percent of volunteers chose to volunteer for only one organization with “being
asked” as the main reason for becoming volunteers.

3. VOLUNTEERISM IN RED DEER
3.1 OVERVIEW/STATISTICS
Number of Volunteers/Hours

With a population last year of 68,308 Red Deer is the fourth largest urban center in
Alberta, and growing steadily, averaging 4% growth per year over the past 45 years.
Two groups in Red Deer were able to provide some statistics on volunteerism within the
City: CIRS (Community and Information Referral Society) and FCSS (Family and
Community Support Services).

CIRS provides a number of services to recruit volunteers, support managers of
volunteers and track volunteerism in Red Deer and surrounding area. During 1999 and
in 2000, CIRS provided an average of four referrals each to people interested in
volunteering. Eighty agencies in 1999 and one hundred agencies in 2000 requested
CIRS assistance in recruiting and matching volunteers. CIRS staff report prospective
volunteers are primarily interested in ongoing volunteer assignments, with youth or with
seniors.

FCSS funded agencies report volunteer statistics annually as part of their ongoing
funding requirement. In the year 2000, 57 agencies/committees reported 13,571
volunteers gave 184,969 hours.

Extrapolating from the Alberta volunteer rate found in the 2000 NSGVP, we would
estimate that there are 39% or 26,640 volunteers in Red Deer. In interviewing a cross
section of managers of volunteers, some felt this estimate was low, especially given the
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extra volunteer efforts recently in the aftermath of the Pine Lake tornado (July/2000),
the toxic rail spill (February, 2001) and the hosting of the Red Deer International Air
Show (August, 2001). 722 volunteers alone registered with CIRS to help with the Pine
Lake clean up following the tornado.

According to the managers of volunteers interviewed, there was a wide range of
volunteer hours given per week (1— 6). Most estimated Red Deer volunteers were close
to the national and provincial average hours given per year. Note that Red Deer
agencies interviewed, unlike provincial and federal surveys, do include practicum
students and those mandated to do community hours in their volunteer statistics.

Who Are The Volunteers In Qur Community (age, gender, and socioeconomic
status)?

About two thirds of the agencies interviewed felt their current volunteer base was
comprised of mostly females, ranging from 65% to 97.5%. The other six agencies
unanimously felt the ratio was approximately equal. The age group of volunteers most
quoted was in the 35-54 years of age. As expected, the only variation of this were the
two agencies targeting senior clientele (volunteer age range more likely in 55-64) and
the two targeting youth (more volunteers in 25-34). When asked whether Red Deer
agencies were seeing the number of youth volunteers doubling, most felt youth
numbers were static or only slightly increasing. Of those who were seeing more
youth give of their time, it was typically in one time only special events. None of the
eighteen agencies interviewed tracked marital status, education level, household
income or labor force status on its volunteers. However, most managers of volunteers
felt the provincial statistics were reflective of their volunteer base in Red Deer with the
greater percentage of volunteers coming from the mid to high income bracket, mostly
employed at least part time, and most with post-secondary education. There were
two agency exceptions, both utilizing mostly volunteers whose status reflected the
status of their client base.

Roles and responsibilities of volunteers

The following are the main roles and responsibilities reported:

¢ Direct client service and support (94%) - such as child care, bereavement
support, driving seniors to appointments, crisis response, coaching, troubleshooting
technical equipment, and mentoring.

¢ Fundraising and organizing special events (88%) - felt to be more in demand as
agencies can no longer rely on one stable source of funds. These roles appear to be
easiest to fill as more and more volunteers are looking for short- term positions.
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Volunteer board members and committee members (83%) - more technical skill
and sophistication is required of this volunteer role. A couple of agencies that serve
youth are attempting to include the youth perspective on their boards. One agency
has two board positions that are mandatory youth representatives. Another agency
attempted this and found youth seemed intimidated by the adults on the board. They
experienced more involvement by setting up a youth committee with one
representative providing regular feedback to the board.

Administration (66%)

Education (61%)

Interestingly, the roles felt most difficult to fill were either the highly skilled roles
(requiring a longer commitment and more training), or the administrative role (felt to be
too monotonous).

Motivators

In the survey of Red Deer agencies, the main reason quoted for volunteering was:

“Give back” to their community

transition to retirement

career experience

socialization or to combat loneliness

increase self esteem

for a free meal

to increase family time by volunteering together

for the adrenaline rush

realizing the valuable service and need in the community
as a parent to assist own child/ensure service provided
former clients wanting to give back to agency

a genuine interest in agency mandate and spiritual responsibility.

Minimally noted were mandated hours for community service and networking for
personal business profit.

Recruitment

The methods used by agencies interviewed include:

“personal contact” - asking and “word of mouth” were mentioned by all managers
and felt to be the most successful method of recruitment. A few agencies relied on
this exclusively, and felt it saved them time in the long run as they were confident

new volunteers being referred by known contacts had already passed the first
screening.
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o free advertising - used by most, in the local paper, at CIRS and on Shaw cable TV.
e public displays at trade fairs or in the malls.
o flyer distribution through local high schools - used by two agencies

Other unique methods were advertising at the Rebels hockey games, local classroom
presentation and other agency referrals. A couple of managers expressed frustration
with professionals in health, justice, and social services that refer clients who were
either not healthy enough to volunteer, or were not prepared to go through the
screening process.

Screening

Volunteers represented in this study’s sample were not all formally screened, depending
on the method of recruitment and the terms of the position. Five agencies (27% of
sample) did not feel the need to formally screen at all —they used “known” volunteers
for brief assignments not involving the handling of money, public risk, or work with
children. Most agencies (72%) did follow an application, interview and reference
check process. 44% were further screened with RCMP checks and 22% with Child
Welfare Information System checks.

Training/Support/Supervision

e Qrientation and/or on the job training (50%)
¢ Orientation, on the job training and regular or advanced level training after the
volunteer's initial assignment. (50%)

Support was provided regularly for most volunteers via phone, in person 1:1 contact or
group meetings. Most managers of volunteers expressed genuine interest in getting to
know their volunteers personally, and enjoyed spending time offering informal support.
Also mentioned:

o Formal assignments with job descriptions, a probationary period, and mechanisms
for feedback (11%)

¢ Informal assignments with verbal expectations clear from the start (most).
Most agencies experienced at least one instance of having to re-direct/let go of a
volunteer due to inappropriate match or inadequate performance.

¢ In one agency dealing with crisis work, debriefing and a paid EAP program was
provided to their volunteers following each critical incident.

3.2 RECOGNITION - INCLUDING INTERNATIONAL YEAR OF THE
VOLUNTEER

In Red Deer, CIRS leads recognition annually during Canada’s Volunteer week. This
year volunteer week was April 22- 28, 2001. In Red Deer there were 296 volunteers
who attended the Volunteer breakfast, 204 attended the Volunteer tea at the Golden
Circle. In 1999, there were 294 volunteers at the breakfast, 120 at the tea. This year, in
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recognition of the International Year of Volunteer, CIRS added 1YV chocolates/pins to
their giveaways.

Eighty nine percent of the eighteen managers interviewed provided some form of
regular recognition. Recognition included:

Qccasional “token” gifts, coupons, birthday or Christmas cards (55%)
Regular Socials (44%) - of those who offered a formal evening meal (frequently the
same night as the agency annual general meeting) participation was dropping off
gradually to only half of their volunteer base taking part in 2000.

e Volunteer week participation: tea or breakfast (38%)
Pins, personal educational opportunities and post secondary scholarships (donated
via business partnerships) 1o recognize length of service and encourage longer
commitments (5%)
Sending delegates to the Vitalize provincial conference in Edmonton (16%)
Youth volunteers being offered more meaningful gifts — for example, theatre passes,
t-shirts, water bottles (17%)

Extra recognition was provided by 50 percent of managers of volunteers for IYV.
Examples of recognition included newsletter articles, pictorial displays in their agency, a
yearbook of volunteers, IYV stickers and decals. One manager of volunteers submitted
Volunteer Profiles to the Red Deer Advocate on behalf of many agencies that attend the
Volunteer Managers Network (VMN) group.

A few agencies felt less interest had been shown lately in the traditional forms of
recognition and stated their volunteers declined their offer of socials, conferences and
volunteer week activities. The reason most often stated by volunteers was a lack of time
to take part, and recognizing the agency should spend their budget on clients, not
volunteers. One agency that had many disadvantaged volunteers recently decided to
offer more practical recognition in the form of grocery gift certificates. No agency offered
the more traditional plaques.

4. TRENDS
4.1 NATIONAL/PROVINCIAL
Surveys of national and provincial volunteers report:

decentralizing decision-making to Regional Authorities

« Shifting role of government - reduced services, voluntary sector has increasing
responsibility for governing and funding public programs
also movement toward integration of several government departments

 increasingly question credibility of non-profit organizations/sector and their ability
to govern and carry out program

e require management expertise and highly skilled volunteers
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increasing time demancds on volunteers

project based funding from government and multiple sources

increased demands for efficiency, effectiveness and accountability

government cutbacks, fiscal restraint, meet greater needs with fewer resources,
increased demand = greater competition for volunteers

increased demand on time with changing work and leisure: one parent family,
both parents working, aging parents, more mobility leads to shorter term
assignments ( 79% of those not volunteering would be more likely to if task was
short term).

growing dissatisfaction with bureaucracy, change seems slow and unresponsive
expect challenging, interesting assignments, older baby boomers (in their 40s)
are looking for meaning in their life

broader cross section of volunteers means broad recruitment needed

more unemployed volunteering between jobs (offer skills for short term, want
resume enhancement)

more early retirees looking for work substitute

more volunteers expect professional treatment —i.e. management system must
support, train, recognize and evaluate

new view of volunteer management — they want creative ownership but still must
be responsible for work getting done

increase in senior population led to an increase in demand for services and a
younger, healthier senior volunteer base

4.2 RED DEER TRENDS

City reports state trends in increased immigration, expanding role of women, economic
constraints, all leading to a more diverse client/customer base in our community. From
interviewing the eighteen managers of volunteers within Red Deer, some trends were
evident regarding the volunteer and the management of volunteers:

VOLUNTEERS TRENDS AND IMPLICATIONS

1.

More difficulty finding volunteers (83%)

Less people volunteering was actually seen by some agencies as a positive trend in
society. One agency that tended to employ lower income volunteers felt their
difficulty recruiting volunteers was a good sign that the economy is healthier,
generating more work opportunities. A couple of agencies expressed difficulty
finding volunteers to work at bingos, and felt this may be due to people being more
health conscious.
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Implications:

a) paid staff doing the work formerly done by volunteers

b) more time and money spent in targeting volunteers: rural areas, youth, semi-
retired seniors, and corporations

¢) more creative partnerships (for sharing volunteer resources, and the cost of
training)

d) more attempts to remove barriers to volunteering — for example, one agency that
relied on volunteers to donate gas in transporting clients now provide charitable
receipts. A few agencies have allowed more flexible volunteer hours, and
volunteer work at home.

2. Less volunteer time commitment (78%) due to busier lifestyles, more transient work
placements; the changing role of family (more single parent homes, blended
families); people volunteering for more than one agency; more youth volunteering
and wanting short term tangible assignments; the greater demands of being
screened.

Implications:

a) agencies have now adopted shorter-term sessions (also a trend seen in
customer demand for shorter-term programming - for example, some churches
used to run 48-week sessions of a seven-year curriculum for Sunday School;
now they highlight aspects of the Bible in 12-week sessions.

b) increased cost due to more frequent recruitment and training

¢) less experience/knowledge being passed on to their clientele

d) more enthusiasm, a fresh approach to serving

e) fewer agencies insisting on a minimum commitment

f) less time spent on screening, orientation and training, especially with one-time
volunteers

g) less use of college students as volunteers due to the length of screening process
of some agencies

h) increased use of volunteers in one-time events: fund raisers, projects

i) more burden on the volunteer manager to be more flexible and step in to cover
roles when volunteers are not found for the day to day, or longer term roles.

3. Increased depth of skills required to volunteer (66%)

Volunteer agencies felt the demand on their volunteers is higher now due to
cutbacks, more complex client needs, gaps in service provision and higher
technological needs. (Sixty percent of agencies interviewed required volunteers to
be trained in computer and/or audiovisual equipment use). Volunteers need to work
more independently, be more dependable and more knowledgeable.



36
State of Volunteerism

Implications:

a) difficulty placing unskilled volunteers (11%)

b) loss of clients unless they provided service using current technology (17%)
i.e. in more visual/tactile form of presentations

¢) agencies spending more time than necessary due to outdated technology.

4. Fewer volunteers attending meetings, training and recognition nights (50%)

Some agencies have improved their attendance numbers by hosting less frequent
meetings, and by providing optional social time before or after the meeting. Some
use videos or self-taught manuals to orientate and train volunteers. This allows the
volunteer flexibility in choosing where and when they access the information. Some
agencies are making training mandatory. Many are re-considering the best time for
the majority of their volunteers. Some managers are providing perks throughout the
year rather than hosting one night/year for recognition. Others are asking the
volunteers to plan their own form of recognition night.

5. Higher expectations of volunteers (44%)

Implications:

a) volunteers want full understanding of their role, including possible liabilities

b) volunteers are less willing to put themselves at risk

¢) volunteers want paid staff to deal with conflict in serving clients/customers

d) volunteers want challenging and rewarding placements (necessitating increased
supervision)

e) require food/ and social opportunity for more monotonous work assignments
becoming more formal with competition for volunteer positions and written job
descriptions

6. Volunteer burnout (33%)

Implications:

a) limiting the length of assignments

b) instituting more support

c) educating volunteers that it's OK to say no to an assignment

7. More short term volunteers (26%)

Implications:

a) losing the depth of experienced volunteers
b) more frequent recruitment and training
¢) clients receive a fresh approach
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9.

Fewer volunteers aged 55-65 (11%) perhaps due to people being more financially

stable, and with better health, taking advantage of their early retirement to travel or
enjoy life. This trend may also be due to more caregivers in this age group caring for
older relatives, and not having time to volunteer. One agency mentioned their older
volunteers seem intimidated by the new technology surrounding the assignments
and the youth clients’ high expectations.

People donating money rather than donating time (11%)

10. An increase in mandated volunteers (11%)

Implications:

a) more time spent on screening

b) mandated volunteers expecting to be accepted at face value, to be able to
choose their desired placement, and not have to go through screening

¢) increased number of inappropriate referrals (from professionals in justice, health
and social services agencies)

VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT TRENDS

1.

Process of managing volunteers has become much more sophisticated, requiring
higher skill level (66%) Implications:

a) the knowledge required to be an effective Volunteer Manager has increased. It
takes much more skill now to do recruitment, screening, training, supervising,
networking and supporting volunteers.

b) most managers have little training in volunteerism prior to assuming their
positions

¢) managers of volunteers may be at risk of “burn out” unless they feel supported.

d) expectation for fair remuneration, and frustration that non-profit are unable to
offer more incentive or professional development to managers of volunteers.

Managing volunteers requires more time (66%) Implications:

a) Increased time demand to do recruitment, screening, training, supervising,
networking and supporting volunteers
b) increased travel time with regionalization of some services.

Managers of volunteers relying on outside support and information (56%)

Ten managers of volunteers interviewed relied heavily on their national
organizations for administrative and management guidance and resources. They
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provide support in managing volunteers, training that’s more accessible, volunteer
transfers and widespread pride.

Of the eight managers of volunteers who did not access their national organization,
five (62%) mentioned a strong desire to have a central agency leading the volunteer
effort in Red Deer. They felt there should be one agency that has a clear, strong role
in education and coordination. For e.g. If Red Deer were to host a sporting event, or
a new agency started in Red Deer — there should be a “one stop place” to provide
direction, training, recruitment, ideas to coordinate, generic orientation and policy
manuals, etc.

Along with these comments were a strong appreciation of Community Information and
Referral Society (CIRS) and the Volunteer Managers’ Network (VMN) in providing some
manager training, networking opportunities, and volunteer recruitment via their
opportunity binder and “my community information” web page.

*Note: Social Planning has facilitated an evaluation and planning process for the VMN

to be even more effective. It is hoped this group will continue to lead volunteer efforts in
communities, as well as continuing the momentum of IYV.

5. SUGGESTIONS TO MAINTAIN STRENGTHS AND FACE CHALLENGES IN
VOLUNTEER EFFORTS

Some suggestions were obvious from reviewing the literature. Other suggestions came
directly from the managers of volunteers themselves. They include:

1. Plan for short term or episodic volunteers

simplify some volunteer positions
include assignments of 3 months or less, one time events, or recurring event
positions

» break a complex role into more than one shorter-term role

e spend minimal management time on these brief positions (for screening,
training, tracking recognition and supervising.)

2. Re-evaluate long-term volunteer positions

e ensure you are not asking too much of your volunteers
» consider whether the position should be paid
» where thorough screening is necessary, find ways to do it more efficiently



State of Volunteerism 39

3. Offer Flexibility in Positions

o consider whether the position can the position be shared by a team or family or
business

» allow the volunteers to work from home, and set their own hours
involve volunteer in determining how to meet their goals

e ensure the curriculum is based on the clients’ needs and the volunteers’
strengths

e make sure your agency has a variety of positions to choose from that fit a variety
of commitment and times available

o offer education to help volunteers discover where they can offer their unique
skills

e send a clear message to your volunteers that it's OK to have healthy boundaries
and turn down a volunteer role, or change roles if it's not a good fit

e allow leaves of absence to meet volunteer needs and welcome them back when
ready

« offer to rotate volunteer positions regularly

4. Keep Using Current Volunteers to Recruit
Personal contact was seen as a valuable recruitment method, one that limits the
amount of time needed to screen volunteers, and one that offers additional social
incentive to continue volunteering.

5. Target Recruitment

According to Provincial and National statistics, retirees are relatively
underrepresented in the volunteer sector. However, this group also devoted more
time than average per person to volunteer activities, and are a valuable resource. It
may be worthwhile to target volunteers from this segment. Managers of volunteers
may want to look at the timing of training and service provision to ensure it fits their
target group. Some managers of volunteers suggested using posters to recruit
retirees at coffee shops, travel agencies, golf courses, etc.

Youth are also becoming more active in volunteering. By volunteering, they gain a
greater sense of confidence, enjoy interacting more in the adult world and develop
new communication skills while exploring career options. Youth offer enthusiasm,
energy and fresh perspectives. This is seen already in the greater representation of
youth on local boards, and the many youth initiatives currently operating in Red
Deer. Agencies reported seeing more volunteers from the Catholic School system as
part of their curriculum requirements. This may benefit the community in the long
term as participation in organizational activities during the formative years may
encourage people to take on more community involvement and volunteering in
adulthood.
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Corporate volunteers may be another possible target for new recruitment.
Corporations are recognizing the value in contributing to the volunteer sector by
encouraging employee volunteer activities on “company time”. Such involvement
combines positive social action with good community relations and employee
development. It improves employee morale, productivity and loyalty to the
organization. It's good pubilic relations for the company and can be used as a
marketing tool. This pool of people may make it easier to target for particular
volunteer skills needed as well. Others suggest setting up “buddy systems” or
mentorships with skilled corporate volunteers assisting inexperienced volunteers.

Many agencies in Red Deer successfully employ a diverse range of volunteers with
social, physical or mental challenges. For example, Assured Income for the
Severely Handicapped, Cosmos, Catholic Social Services and the John Howard
Society all refer clients for volunteer work. With the proper guidance, this can be a
rewarding experience for both volunteer and agency.

6. Remove Practical Barriers

e reimburse volunteers for all out of pocket expenses

offer free parking, identification and uniforms

offer debriefings or employee assistance programs to those volunteering in crisis
situations

offer needed training

maintain equipment to a level that's conducive to effective, efficient operation

set up mentoring relationships between experienced and new volunteers
encourage staff to show volunteers continual appreciation both inside and
outside the agency

e ensure volunteers understand role completely, including any liabilities

7. Keep Meeting Time Minimal

keep meetings short and productive

only schedule meetings as needed

offer optional social time before/after meeting

where an agency has experienced huge growth in their volunteer base, set up
smaller more manageable teams of volunteers.

8. Maintain a Good Organizational Reputation

To attract new volunteers and keep existing ones committed, it's important to
promote the good reputation of the organization

promote an atmosphere that’s positive
ensure expectations of each volunteer are clear right from initial application.

e conduct thorough screening of volunteers that work with children, youth, or some
other vulnerable clientele
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e ensure volunteer manager receives fair remuneration and opportunity for
professional development

9. Pursue Partnerships

With the number of social agencies having similar mandates and targeted clients, it
may be in their favor to encourage partnerships among not-for profit, government,
and business sectors. Shared governance means shared resources, and if you can
accept collective decision-making, often the result is better decisions for the target
population. Research warns that partnerships are fragile and can cause a loss of
autonomy or a compromising of values. However, the benefits for some agencies far
outweigh the risks. Some agencies in Red Deer are collaborating successfully for
volunteer training (for example “Volunteers for Seniors”). However, Volunteer
Managers interviewed also noted pursuing partnerships can be time-consuming, and
will affect the amount of time available for clients.

10. Show You Genuinely Care About Volunteers
Managers of volunteers play a vital role in so many organizations. They suggest:

get to know volunteers personally and genuinely care about their well being
provide meaningful forms of recognition by asking volunteers what would be
most appreciated (e.g. group rates at a gym, grocery coupons)
use recognition that promote program and volunteer loyalty
openly discuss mutual expectations of the volunteer assignment
regulate service provision to ensure volunteers are not overworked and clients
are not misusing service

e never miss an opportunity to say thank you and show genuine appreciation of
volunteers
maintain regular communications with volunteers, fostering mutual appreciation
take advantage of ongoing opportunities for professional development

6. SUCCESS STORIES

It's difficult to write a research paper such as this without feeling the huge positive
impact some volunteers have made in this community. Every Volunteer Manager
interviewed presented at least one such success story. The following is a sample:

* A former computer system employee volunteered 0.5 FTE as a way to transition to
semi-retirement and develop contacts for owning his own business. His skills came
at a time when this agency was in the process of setting up a new computer system,
and they could not have functioned without his help...a mutual benefit success.

» One agency manager proudly stated their organization had been run strictly by
volunteers for 69 years, and continues to use many volunteers to deliver services.
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Another agency gave the example of a 76-year-old volunteer who had been
donating her time since 1986. In recent years, this woman could no longer offer the
same level of physical skills. The agency offered her an equally rewarding position
that was not as physically demanding. The agency continues to benefit from her
dedication and experience with clients, the volunteer continues to feel worthwhile.

There was a drastic change noted in the self-esteem level of a youth volunteer. This
youth had come from a troubled home environment, was painfully shy, and found it
difficult to trust others. Today, after three years of volunteering, she has developed a
good reputation for herself in the community, is very outspoken and happier, makes
eye contact with others, and has just earned a school scholarship!

One agency proudly bragged of the 30 year dedication of a female volunteer who
continues to play piano in their senior’s centre for two hours every Sunday evening.
She’s never missed a week, and will be sorely missed when she retires from this
volunteer role.
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Comments:

We concur with the recommendations of the Social Planning Manager that this report be
received for information purposes only as we see no specific action arising from the report. The
City continues to place a strong priority on volunteerism and volunteer development and invests
considerable resources in this process on an ongoing basis. This will continue and has our full
support.

“G. D. Surkan”
Mayor

“N. Van WyKk”
City Manager
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DATE: December 18, 2001

TO: Barbara Jeffrey, Social Planning Manager !';""‘:‘Zgém E
FROM: City Clerk

RE: International Year of the Volunteer: Voluntarism in Red Deer
Reference Report:

Social Planning Manager, dated December 10, 2001

Report Back to Council: No
Comments/Further Action:

This report was received by Council for information purposes only. Please extend Council’s thanks to
Linda Carritt for her presentation and report.

Kelly Kloss
City Clerk

/chk
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Memo

Date: December 10, 2001

To: Kelly Kloss, City Clerk

From: Dan Newton, Information Technology Services Manager
RE: GIS Strategy Report for Council information and awareness

A Geographical Information System (GIS) was identified as a high priority item
during the City's Information Technology Service Department planning sessions
in 2001. As a result, we engaged a consultant to develop a GIS Strategy.
Attached you will find a copy of the “City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan”.

The purpose of this report was to review the current situation and identify the
potential future state for Geographical Information Systems at the City of Red
Deer. The report also provides some “next steps” to be taken to work towards
the implementation of a GIS. Since GIS will be part of the 2002 budget
discussions we have asked the consultant who prepared this plan to present the
findings to Council for their awareness and understanding.
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CitYy OF RED DEER GIS STRATEGIC PLAN
1 Mission/Scope

The GIS initiative includes development and implementation of technologies, databases and
processes that create, maintain, access, analyze and view data based on location.

A conceptual model for GIS is presented in Appendix 1.

2 Purpose

The purpose of GIS in Red Deer is to:

¢ Provide employees with timely access to appropriate information so they can make decisions,
communicate with the public or with their customers, provide input, and do their jobs well.

¢ Provide community members and partners with access to information they need to take
advantage of City services, provide input and make decisions

[Source: Guiding Principles from Strategic Plan]

These will be accomplished by:

¢ Making appropriate use of GIS technology so that it supports the businesses we are in and
helps us share and produce information i a timely manner.

[Source: Long term goal 3.7 - Strategic Plan]

3 Current Situation

3.1 Existing Map Bases
3.1.1 General

All mapping is done using MicroStation. Mapping is done in NAD83 3TM projection, with true
northings and eastings. MicroStation GeoGraphics is used to clean linework, attach tags, and
manage graphic data. Mapping standards are established and well-managed.

3.1.2  Legal parcels

Legal parcels, except metes and bounds (descriptive boundaries), are mapped by Spatial Data
Warehouse, and updated every 6 months. Linework is reasonably clean, but there is a
conversion process to import the map data. Tentative subdivision plans are obtained in digital
format from developers for use between updates from SDW.

Tags to allow connection to non-graphic data exist, but need to be completed. Parcels are not
created as polygons, nor is there topography. There is a logical distinction to be made between
legal parcels and tax parcels, and it is understood that there is no tax parcel map.

Address nodes exist for most parcels, and are linked to a database.

City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan Page 2

G.P Davis & Associates Limited November, 2001
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3.1.3 Infrastructure

Infrastructure that is mapped includes:
¢ Water

¢ Sanitary sewer
¢ Storm sewer

¢ Power

¢ Streets

Mapping includes linework and tags, so that existing attribute databases for power, water,
sanitary sewer and storm sewer are attached. For roads there is linework only, but a single line
street network product (see below) is in process.

Engineering Services has completed mapping to the end of 1999, and is near completion of 2000
additions. New infrastructure is mapped by importing as-builts supplied by developers and
consultants.

3.1.4 Street Centreline

There 1s a street centreline project currently in progress that has created a single line street
network representation of roads, and that is populating a database consisting of block face
address ranges and other road attributes. The Municipal Pavement Management System is being

integrated into the street centreline project.

The Fire Department Management (dispatch and records) system uses its own single line street
representation.

3.1.5 Aerial Photography

1998 Aerial photography exists, and 2001 digital orthophotography is currently being processed.
New aerial photos are at 1:8000 scale. Aerial imagery is capable of displaying details such as
pavement markings. MrSid compression technology will improve the portability of the aerial

photography products.

3.1.6 Geoadministrative Areas

District polygons have been mapped for:
¢ Fire districts

+ Police districts

¢ Census

¢ Subdivisions

¢ Voting polling station boundaries (we do not use a ward system)

These are graphics only.

City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan Page 3

G.P Davis & Associates Limited November, 2001
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3.1.7 Ecological Management System

Material presently digitized includes (with approximate number of locations):

*
L4
L 4
¢

Ecospace (natural habitat) map — 1600 locations

Turf maintenance map (without any number codes) — 524 locations
Mosquito control map (in a draft form) — 1423 locations

Open space and neighborhood park sites — 300 locations

These themes are graphics only.

Features identified as requiring digitization includes:

* ¢ ¢ 6 o 0

Non-ecospace habitat — 276 locations

Integrated pest management — >500 .locations

Pest control/wildlife tracking — >1000 locations

Plant health care management (shrub beds) — 1099 locations

Plant health care management (tree inventory) — 23,000 locations

Plant health care management (regional elm tree inventory) — 28,400 locations
Weed control and rough cut sites — 373 locations

3.1.8 Other Map Themes

Other map themes include:

L R 2 R K IR R BR 2R I I B SR AR I K

Land use districts

Refuse collection zones

Truck routes

Transit routes

Snow plowing routes

Trails

Major visitor attractions

Land sales (for Economic Development)
Building footprints for civic buildings and other major buildings
Signs

Park Boundaries

Wetlands

Turf mowing areas

Mosquito spraying areas

Pavement markings

Traffic signal design drawings

Parking lots and meters

Signs (stop and yield, only)

Design and construction drawings

City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan Page 4
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3.2 Existing Data Bases
3.2.1 Links Between Maps and Databases

Addresses are one of the primary linking mechanisms between maps and data. Addresses are
associated with legal parcels, and Telus Geomatics is maintaining this database. There is some
clean up needed for parcels with multiple addresses. A number of applications access or validate
addresses from the data warehouse, but this is not a uniform practice. There are some non-
standard addresses maintained in individual systems, and aliases remain an issue to be addressed.
The RCMP also has an address/alias file, although integration with City of Red Deer files would
be an issue.

GIS typically connects non-graphic or tabular data to mapped features. Non-graphic data
includes attributes of the mapped features which can be queried, displayed or accessed. The
following non-graphic data is maintained.

¢ The Bellamy system maintains tax roll and property master information. This latter can
provide basic property attributes for parcels.

¢ Compass Camalot system is used for assessment records.

A data warehouse application (replicated in both Access and SQL) contains tax and property

address tables that are accessed by other application systems.

Census maintains civic census data.

Business license and development permit data is maintained

Traffic signs inventory is maintained.

Infrastructure Management System contains infrastructure (water, sanitary sewer, storm

sewer, power, and streets) attributes. This system is linked to the mapped infrastructure.

Permits and licenses information database

RCMP alarm locations, calls, and false alarms are maintained in a non-City file

An off site levies database is in progress

Parcel title

civic properties

Traffic signs inventory

Water meter database (address)

Utility customer/consumption database (power is separate)

Financial data

RCMP calls for service are maintained in their systems

Traffic accident locations

Service locations for water, san, storm, power

Problem history on city and power utility services

excavation permit file

excavation permit file

utility Right of Way database and agreements

*

* & o o
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3.3 Applications

Currently GIS is used primarily to generate paper map products. Bentley GeoGraphics is used to
create GIS data, which is accessed through GeoOutlook. Only users in Engineering Services,
ELP and Public Works have digital access to digital map data, and these staff use MicroStation
or Bentley GeoOutlook to access graphic and attribute data. GeoOutlook supports query and
search functions and access to text records from the map representation, as well as graphics
visualization.

A City home page exists, and a new web strategy is being implemented.

An Intranet has been developed, and the street database application will use this to provide
access to users of this system. This will pilot Intranet as a GIS delivery mechanism.

Other applications that have commonly been linked to GIS include:

¢ 911/Fire management system tracks fire incidents, and supports graphic maps.

¢ A roadways Maintenance Management system (MPMS) is in place and will soon be linked to
the single line street network.

¢ Call management system (Public Works, EL&P)

¢ Recreation & Parks uses facility life cycle planning

3.4 Core Technologies

GIS relies on Information Technology infrastructure. The City has standardized its IT on the

following:

Microseft Office for desktop word processing and spreadsheet applications

Windows 95 and NT are used for desktop operating systems.

Bellamy municipal system on AS400 for property taxation.

JD Edwards financial suite on the AS/400.

Infinium Human Resources/Payroll applications on the AS/400.

High-speed networks are in place, and use Microsoft NT.

Several Bentley products are in use. MicroStation is used for CAD, GeoGraphics as the GIS

toolset and GeoOutlook as a viewing/query tool. Descartes is used for manipulating raster

images. It should be noted that Parkland Community Planning Services uses AutoCad for

CAD.

¢ All purchased application databases except Geoware, for the landfill, are ODBC/SQL
standard. An attempt is made to standardize to Microsoft SQLServer, but existing
applications also use DB2 (Bellamy, JDE, Infinium), Sybase SQL Anywhere (Fire
Department Management), and Interbase (Camalot).

¢ Microsoft Access, using VBA, is the major application development tool. Backend
databases are either Access or SQL.

L R ER JEE R R R J
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4 IT/GIS Directions

An IT Plan exists to provide overall strategic direction. There are few documented IT policies,

but there are practices that have been established (including the standards cited above). These

guidelines include:

¢ A clear bias toward off-the-shelf applications, rather than ones that are custom-designed.
Note that software applications alone do not constitute GIS.

¢ User support for applications relies on key users in each user area to act as first level support.
An internal help desk coordinates second level support, which is provided by IT Services.
Application vendors provide third level and advanced technical support.

¢ IT plans are approved by SMT, which will use defined criteria (citizen benefit, business case,
compliance with standards, risk management and contribution to internal and external
communication) to set priorities.

¢ SMT has discussed a system of charging IT services to internal and external clients at a fully
loaded rate. It is assumed that, if approved, this same system will be used for GIS. Mapping
services are currently charged to users at a loaded rate.

¢ The “Red Deer style” is to form user teams to direct implementation of specific projects.

¢ The Strategic Plan requires a focus on technology that has been adequately tested and proven
sound, while keeping the leading edge in sight.

¢ A linking of IT and telecommunications initiatives is underway, as these technologies are
converging.

¢ A new web initiative is in progress, and the strategy will address e-commerce capability.

5  Business Concerns / Issues

GIS should have an impact on the following issues that were identified by staff:

¢ Coping with growth eg. servicing new development

¢ Resistance to tax-increases

¢ Community demographics - aging population, different expectations for different age groups

6 Project Strengths/Opportunities

Strategic planning and IT Master Plan provide a strong management framework for GIS
Level of knowledge and motivation among staff is quite high

Existing mapping, aerial photography and databases are reasonably current and complete -
almost ready to go.

Data warehouse

Technology and data infrastructure are largely in place

Still time to lever work from/on other systems

Web strategy and redevelopment may provide a base

Street centreline project is piloting intranet delivery of GIS data to users

Council is supportive of technology

External partnerships are strong.

L R R 2
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Project Concerns/Issues

The IT Strategy workshops identified the following issues. Although they relate to broader IT
and internal/external clients, they do provide a perspective for GIS implementation.

¢

*
*
*

Time and resource constraints (especially if external clients are supported). IT and other
major projects are competing for attention and resources.

Difficulty in setting priorities across internal and external client needs

Need for clear assessment of business, legal, financial and political risks

Need for clear guiding principles and strategy

Staff identified additional issues:

Data definitions are not explicitly managed, and there are cases of two terms used to define
the same entity, or a single term having two meanings.

There are multiple street network representations, not always synchronized.
There is not always a clear source for some business process standards

A QA process should be in place to ensure data accuracy within standards.
Maintenance processes for data need to be established.

Demographics of staff - information is in peoples heads

Addressing the issue of alternative service delivery methods.

Accessing expertise needed to move forward

Backfilling for seconded staff is an issue

Assessment of business, legal, financial and political risks is needed

Participation of external agencies

Number of GIS implementation failures in the industry
Data compatibility / data consolidation

Technology risk - Volatility of corapanies in the business.
Access to external data

Standards and process decisions are long term.
Interpretation of information. (Accuracy or quality of data)
Sustainability of the systems.

Managing expectations

FOIP issues - ease and rules of access/protection

¢

*

*

*

.

*

L

*

L 4

¢ Setting priorities
L 2

¢

.

*

*

*

¢

¢

8 _Success Measures

Management will measure success by adherence to guidelines (previous sections), as well as
seeing benefits. There is a need to define success in advance so that evidence can be gathered.

Some examples of success measures include:

.
*

L4
¢

Availability, timeliness, confidence in and access to Information

GIS will facilitate decision making by administration and Council through analysis and
visualization of projects and programs

Number of users

User friendliness

City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan Page 8
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Meeting the objectives of the strategic plan

Internal and external efficiency

“Clean” information from which to make decisions

Outcomes and outputs derived from decisions supported by GIS
Coordination among business units — number of shared data sets
Process in place to allow employee and citizen input/communication to collection and update
of data

Improvements to customer service

Avoided long term costs

Collecting/maintaining data is simpler

Information retrieval is quicker

Field staff have access to the map information needed to do their jobs
Existing systems that are consolidated and linked.

Data to support new applications that has been captured and entered.
Internal training completed.

A marketing plan has been developed and introduced to the community and surrounding
municipalities.

Common base maps established for use by a wide range of applications
Users allowed to create, maintain, analyze and view data.

Duplicate effort eliminated

Encourage and facilitate data sharing and integration.

City information integrated with information from other agencies.
Enhanced map-related products provided to staff and citizens.

LR R ER ER IR IR JEP R 4 ®* & & o o o0
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9__ Future State - General GIS Functionality

Staff identified nearly 180 GIS functions that could be potentially implemented in the City of
Red Deer. The complete listing is shown in Appendix 2. Some of these functions are useful to a
range of departments, and others are specific to only one.

10 Priorities

It is clear from the constraints of funding and staff time availability that priorities for GIS
implementation need to be established. The 180 GIS functions listed in Appendix 2 were
evaluated using the criteria for ranking IT projects described in Section 4, and the projects

ranked into 10 groups.

Staff also provided the following direction for setting priorities:

+ Provide improved access to existing GIS data. Update and enhance existing data to make
this possible, rather than spending effort to capture new data.

¢ Establish means to provide broader access (internally and externally) to existing GIS data,
using the forthcoming web applications.

¢ Setup processes to maintain data to ensure its quality.

¢ Complete links (addresses, tax rolls, LINC #, legal description, and possibly phone numbers
to enhance the ability to connect data from many sources.

City of Red Deer GIS Strategic Plan Page 9
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The prerequisites needed to implement each project are shown in Appendix 3. Common
prerequisites include completion of the parcel and address bases, development of an Intranet
solution for delivery of GIS to desktops, and selection of an analytical tool. These foundations
form the first priority for GIS, as they form the basis from which many other applications can be

implemented.

Once the foundations have been completed, it is possible to implement a broad range of GIS
functions within a relatively short time frame and at low cost. Particularly, those applications
wherein map and attribute data already exist and only an Intranet delivery system is needed can
proceed.

11 Next Steps

11.1 Building the Foundation — Data
11.1.1 Parcels

The primary data set for municipal GIS is land parcels. The existing parcel base is sufficient for
geographic referencing (ie. visualization applications), but needs the following enhancements to
support the range of new applications envisioned:

¢ Add metes and bounds descriptions

¢ Close polygons

¢ Tag with tax roll number

A process to ensure that new parcels are created as polygons and tagged needs to be developed.

11.1.2 Attributes Linked to Parcels

The existing data warehouse is key tool for common data (parcel attributes, etc.). Replicating
data into a single data warehouse, then linking this to the GIS is far easier to maintain than
individual database linkages. As additional data themes relating to parcels are identified for
broader sharing (eg. permits and licenses have been identified), these will need to be added to the
common data warehouse.

11.1.3 Building the Foundation — Linkages

The primary linking mechanism to land parcels is the tax roll number. Although the relationship
between tax roll numbers and registered parcels is strong, additional effort is needed to reduce
the number of anomalous relationships (parcels with no/multiple tax roll number(s) and tax roll
numbers with no/multiple parcel(s)).

The other major linkage in a municipal GIS is address. Although there is a reasonable
addressing system in Red Deer, it too needs to be completed to ensure each valid address is
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assigned to a specific location, and that each parcel can be identified by any of the addresses that
relate to it.

Secondary linkages, including legal description, Land Titles LINC number, should be built into
data warehouse as the processes to maintain the relationships are developed. The Bellamy
system currently maintains much of this data.

Collectively the linkages will provide the mechanism for business units to merge their individual
data systems to the GIS.

11.2 Technology Foundations
11.2.1 GIS Technology Platforms

GIS Technical solutions must be chosen within a broad context. The Bentley product line
(MicroStation, GeoGraphics, GeoOutlook, etc.) has served the City well and has the capability to
continue to do so in the short and medium term. But there are more robust products available, as
well as products which are capable of advanced spatial data management, such as SDE from
ESRI, Spatialware from MapInfo and Oracle 8iSpatial. The cost of conversion to a different
product line is substantial, as it includes software licensing, training and data conversion, and
ongoing costs of managing data in these environments can be significant. Furthermore, there is
no immediate benefit to users from doing this.

It is recommended that GIS technology platforms be reviewed, and a medium term (3 to 5 year)
solution be chosen. If at all possible, there should be a strong bias to remaining with Bentley
products until they can no longer support the GIS needs of the City.

11.2.2 Intranet delivery for viewing and data access

The major function of this GIS piece is to allow users to view mapped features, as well as select
map features to access attributes of the feature, through a web browser.

The technical solution to deliver GIS data and functionality to user desktops via the existing
Intranet needs to be confirmed, and a satisfactory working prototype developed. The recently
completed project to provide access to streets and street attribute data may provide the base from
which additional applications can be cloned. There is a risk involved in this solution, as the
development firm is small, and the solution is proprietary.

Alternatively, similar Intranet solutions linking attributes and spatial data can be developed
(major vendors offer toolkits for this). For instance ESRI offers a comparable toolkit solution
(ArcIMS) priced at $25,000. Development of custom applications requires MapObjects (another
ESRI tool set), which is priced at around $10,000. Standard development tools such as Visual

Basic are used with these to deliver applications.
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Bentley Systems offers Viecon Publisher, an Internet publishing solution that is licensed on a per
concurrent user basis - $34,100 for 10 users or $64,100 for 25 users (inittally, 10 concurrent
users should be sufficient). This toolkit is not as robust as ESRI’s IMS/MapObjects offering.

The City of Red Deer needs to review the alternatives in more detail than is provided here, with
the knowledge that a perfect solution does not exist, and that the choice will likely be made

based on the City’s ability to live with, or work around the limitations of the chosen solution.

The downside of implementing ArcIMS is the need to maintain spatial data as Shape files
(ArcView’s format). Translation/conversion can be done (an excellent tool for this is FME, from
Safe Software), but there is an administrative price to be paid to continue doing this.

11.2.3 Analytical tools

Although most users’ needs for simple (non-spatial) query and thematic mapping should be met
with an Intranet application, a more robust query and analysis tool will be required for some
users. A corporate standard for GIS query and analysis needs to be developed. The City of Red
Deer currently has 12 GeoOutlook licenses, and this solution is adequate in all but one regard:
user support. Analytical tools such as GeoOutlook are challenging to learn to use, and require
that users maintain familiarity through practice. Support beyond well-experienced users in the
City is not very good at this time.

Alternatives to GeoOutlook include ArcView and Maplnfo. Of these, ArcView is more popular,
and ESRI Canada has a well-established support network in Alberta. Maplnfo support has
limited availability in Alberta, and ArcView is recommended over Maplnfo for this reason.
Again, ongoing data conversion to ArcView or Maplnfo format becomes an issue.

Selection of an analytical tool is somewhat linked to the Intranet solution selected. For instance,
if ESRI’s IMS/MapObjects solution is chosen, it makes sense to adopt ArcView as the analytical
tool.

11.2.4 Drawing/mapping tools

Staff identified the common need for users to have access to simple drawing/mapping tools (an
example of the use of this would be the RCMP at an accident scene). Research needs to be
conducted and a corporate standard for this developed.

Staff also identified the broad need to be able to assemble custom maps from existing mapped
features, such as would be needed in a report or presentation. GeoOutlook provides this
functionality, but at a high cost for both licenses and training. Other low cost software is
available, but a web-based application that accomplishes this functionality (an example can be
found at www.city.toronto.on.ca/) would be preferable due to low training and support needed.

11.2.5 Tools to select parcels of other map features in buffers or areas

Applications such as notification of customers require the users have the ability to select parcels
or map features through any of the following means:
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¢ create a buffer around a map feature, selecting the features within the buffer polygon

manually select a set of map features (clicking on the features)

¢ select a set of map features through by dragging the mouse to create a circle or rectangular
area

¢ Selecting features by drawing a freeform polygon.

*

These tools can be provided through a number of technical solutions: as part of the Intranet
delivery mechanism, or as part of the analytical tools. The choice will depend partially on the
specific solutions chosen for Intranet delivery and analytical tools. N

11.2.6 Replication of data into the data warehouse

Scripts need to be developed to automatically populate the data warehouse with data from native
databases, where there is common need for access to the data.

11.3 Priority Applications

The top-ranked applications have been grouped into the following delivery phases:
Foundation projects described in Sections 11.1 and 11.2.

Projects that need only an Intranet delivery mechanism to proceed, as well as the above.
Projects needing parcel enhancement and tagging, as well as the above, to proceed.
Projects needing address base cornpletion and query tools to proceed.

Projects needing parcel selection tools to proceed.

Projects with other prerequisites

Sk v~

Appendix 4 clusters the foundation and application projects into a number of delivery phases,
according to the above groupings. It is recommended that foundation projects in delivery phases
F1 and F2 proceed as priorities, with other foundation projects following. Once a foundation
project is complete, the projects in the delivery phase that relies on the foundation can be
prioritized and scheduled. Projects with other prerequisites can be inserted into the project
schedule, as resources are available.

Detailed scheduling of the first year’s projects is beyond the scope of this plan, but should be
done quickly after approval of this plan is attained.

12 Organizational Foundations

The sustainability of GIS depends on the organization that is developed to plan, coordinate and
manage the systems’ components. Issues to be addressed by the organization are discussed in

the sections below.

12.1 GIS Coordination

It is recommended that GIS be developed and implemented through existing business units (IT
Services, Engineering Services and user areas), rather than creating a distinct “GIS Department.

2
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This will ensure that GIS fits with other corporate processes and organizational needs. A
requirement for coordination of actions across business units will need to be addressed.

Most municipalities the size of Red Deer have created a fulltime “GIS Coordinator” role to
provide focus and leadership in developing a GIS program. This position typically has
responsibility for planning, cross-business unit coordination, project management for corporate
GIS initiatives, monitoring and reporting.

Initially, GIS will focus on development of applications to access and use existing data themes,
and it is appropriate that the GIS Coordinator be a part of the Information Technology Services
Department. As GIS development matures, there may be a need to increase the independence
from other business units, and focus GIS on external users, data sharing with external partners
and broader issues. At that point it may be more effective to raise the profile of the position by
having it report to the Director of Corporate Services.

Each business unit needs to provide a consistent working-level contact for GIS. A working
group, comprised of all of these contacts, plus key external stakeholders (eg. PCPS) should be
formed to guide implementation of corporate initiatives. The key function is to ensure that
corporate initiatives benefit the largest number of business units, and that business unit needs are
clearly understood. Depending on the specific nature of projects, it is not necessary that all
business units be present for all meetings of the working group, but a single working group is
easier to manage than one group for each project.

Data sharing/partnering opportunities need to be identified by the working group, and the GIS
Coordinator should lead in development of corporate guidelines for this.

12.2 GIS Technical (IT) Support

Development and support of GIS applications should be part of Information Technology
Services’ mandate. Priority projects have been budgeted based on the assumption that contract
staff will be used to either provide development and maintenance, or backfill for existing staff.
In total, approximately one person-year of additional development and support per year will be
needed to support the GIS program.

12.3 GIS Mapping Support

Although the priority applications were identified partially upon the criteria that existing map
data will be utilized, there will be requirements for additional mapping resources as the GIS plan
extends to new themes. In cases where mapping components of new applications are small a